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;pendent Auditor's Report

To the Shareholders of

Joint-Stock Commercial Bank INDUSTRIAL
AND COMMERCIAL

BANK OF CHINA (MOSCTOW)
{Closed Joint-Stock Company)

~ Auditing entity

Name:

Joint-Stock Commercial Bank INDUSTRIAL AND COMMERCIAL BANK OF CHINA (MOSCOW| {Closed
Joint-Stock Company) (hereinafter — ICBC (Moscow)).

Registered address:
100028 Moscow, Serebryanicheskaya Emb.Str., 28,
State registration:

~ Certificate of Lending Agency State Registration Ne 3475 issued by the Central Bank of the Russian Fed-
gration on 30 August 2007.

Certificate of entry in the Unified State Register of Legal Entities Ne 1077711000157 issued by the Feder-
al Tax Sarvice Department of Moscow on 30 August 2007.

Auditor

Name:

Limited liability company "Accountants and Business Advisers" (LLC, FBK).
Location:

101990, Moscow, 44/1, Myasnitskaya Street, building 2 AB.

State registration:
Registered by Moscow Registration Chamber on 15 November 1983 certificate: series K03 3 Ne 484 583
PM. Registered in the Unified State Register of Legal Entities on 24 July 2002, with 2 primary state regis-
tration number 1027700058286
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Membership in the self-regulated auditors’ organization:

Non-commercial Partnership of “Auditor's Chamber of Russia’.

Number of the self-regulated auditors’ organization in the register of audit organizations:
Certificate of membership in the non-commercial Partnership *Auditors’ Chamber of Russia
Ne 5353, OPH3 - 10201039470

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of ICBC {Moscow), which comprise the State-
ment of Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Financial Position, the Statement of Changes in Equity,
' the Statement of Cash Flows, and the Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended on 31 December

2012

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentatior, of these financial statements in ac-
‘cordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as managemeant
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material mis-
statement, whether due to fraud or emor.

Auditor's responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit We conduct-
ed our audit in accordance with the Federal Standards for Audit Activities and International Standards on
Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with the ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material mis-
statemenis.

The audit involved performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the as-
sessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considered intemal control relevant to the entity s prepara-
tion and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appro-
priate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal control. The audit also included evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounling estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements

\We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly in all material respects, the financial position of ICBC
(Moscow) as at December 31, 2012, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards.
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Other Information

of the Bank financial statements for the period from 01 January 2011 to 31 December 2011 was
ed out by the Ali-Audit, Ltd audit firm. By the results of the audit, Alt-Audit, Ltd in the independent
or's opinion expressed an unmodified opinion that the ICBC (Moscow) financial statements for 2011
 prepared in all material aspects in accordance with a fair presentation framework.

A.G, Terekhov
on the basis of power of attorney Ne 5/13 of

Vice-President of FBK LLC #715.01.2013 , with the three years validity period )

| MA. Chizhov

¢ // (certificate of competence of 08.10.2012 Ne 01-
000911, OPH3 20401041935)

&27» June 2013
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1CBC (Moscow)
Financal statements for the year ended December 31, 2012
{m thousands of Russian Rubles, unless otherwise stated)

Motes to Financial Statements
{in thowsands of Russian Rubles)

1 Principal activity
ZAD Industrial and Commerdial Bank of China (Moscow) (hersingfier, the Bank) was established in 2007
Industriad and Commercial Bank of China Limsted is the principal shareholder of the Bank.

Dwiners (shareholders) of the Bank are presented in the table balome:

Onwner (shareholder) December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011
Industrial and Commernclal Bank of Ching Limited 100% 100%
Total 100% 100%

The Bank holds the folowing licensas issued by the Cantral Bank of the Russian Federation (the Bank of Russia)
- general banking license Mo. 3475 issued on October 9, 2007
Principal banking transactions of the Bank are as follows:
principal banking transactions of the Bank
The Board of direciors of the Bank is haaded by Luo i
Tha Bank does nol have any subsidiaries and associated companies and does not prepare consolidaled financial statements.
The Bank does nol have any branches.

The principal place of business of the Bank is Moscow.

In 2042 the full-equivalent employes number 2012 was 51 persons {2011: 40 persons). As al December 31, 2012, the number of persons employed
was B0 persons (2012: 45 persons)

These financial statermanis were approved for release on June 26, 2013 by resolulions of the Board of ICBC (Moscow!),

2  Economic environment in which the Bank operates

The Bank primarily operates in the Russian Federation.

The government of the Fussian Federafion continees o introduce economic meforms and improve judicial, tax and regulatory legistation. Current
govemment's actions on modernization of Russian economy are aimed at increase in labour productivity and impravement in guality of production,
and also at increase in (he share of industies that produce science-iniensive products and senvices. The future stability of Russian economy
depends |argely on such reforms and the effectiveness of economic, financial and money and credit measures taken by the govemment. In 2012
Russlan economy conlinues o recover after the financial crisis which was followed by growth in demand for loans both from corparate cusiomers
and individuals. And rather high Bguidity indices of Russian banking secior encourage competition for high-gueality borrowers.

Desple these signs of recovery of Russian economy, there is still an uncertainty about its further growth and ability of the Bank and iis counlerparties
o bomow new funds 3t scceptable rates which may have an impact on financial posiion, performance and growth prospects of the Bank. Whilke
Russlan economy (s sansitive o negative trends in global markets, there is still & sk of heightened volatiity of Russian financial markets,

While the direclion of a Bank iz confident, that i these circumstances il takes all necessary measures 1o maintain the sustamabdity and growth of
business, negative trends in the above areas could have an adverse effect on operating results and financial standing of the Bank. And now it is
difficult to estimate this efect.

The tax, cumency and customs taws of e Russian Federafion allow vanous interpreations and are subject to frequant changes. The additional
difficuity for banks currently operating in the Russian Federation is the imperfection of the legal framework applicable fo insolvency dnd bankruptoy
cases, absenca of formalized procedures of registration and enforcement of loan security. and alse defects of legal and fiscal systems. The
prospects for further sconomic development of the Russian Federation depend largely on the effectivenass of economic, fnancial and currency
measures teken by the govemmen af the Russian Federation, and also on developrmem of tax, legal, requlatory and political sysiems.



ICBC (Moscow)
Financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2012
[in thousands of Russian Rubles, unkess ofherwise stated)

3  Basis for pressntation

Tne Bank's financial statements are prepared in accordance with IFRS, all standarcs adopled eadier and interpretations of Standing Interpretations
Commitiee and IFRS Interpretaions Committee. The Bank maintains its records anc prepares financlal stalements in compliance with the
requiremaents of laws applicable in Its registralion counties, These financial statemants ar= based on the Bank’s sfatutory books and records
adjusted and rectassified to comply with |FRS. Below shown afe the accounting polices used in preparaticn of these consolidated financis
statements. The socounting policies have been consistently applied in relation 1o all the periods prasented in thess financial statements (unless
olherwise stated),

The Bank keeps books in the currency of the Russian Faderation and makes sccounting records in compliance with the requirements of banking
laws of Ihe Russian Federation. These financial statements were prepared on the basls of these accountng records which were adjusted to bring
them in compliance with all matenal aspects. of IFRS.

These finarcial statemerts are preparad on a going-concem basis Refer 1o nole Effec! of Estimates and Assumpbions on Recognised Assets and
Liabilities.

The financial stalements are presentsd in the national currency of the Russisn Federation (RUB) which iz the Bank's functional curency and
presentetion currency. Unless ctherwise stated, figures in the financial slatzments are in thousands of Russian roubles

The accounting policies applied by the Bank ara the same a5 those appliad by the Bank for the previous yeas, with the addition of new and revised
standarcs which must be applied to arnual periods beginning on January 1, 2012

The Bank did not use voluntary reclassification during the reparting and previcus reporting periods.

A number of new Standards and interpratations, mandatory for reporting pericds beginning on ar after January 1, 2013, was issued, bul was not
early adepted by the Bank:

IAS 19 Employes Benefils (hareinafler, 1AS 19), issued in June 2011, =fective for annual perlods baginning on ar after January 1, 2013, with early
adoplion permitted, prescribes the accounting and disclosure by emplovers for employes benefits. 1AS 19 improves the accounling for pensions and
other post-employment benefits by eliminating the option {o defer the recognition of gains and |osses, known as the corrider approach, streamlines
the presentation of changes In assels and liabilties and enhances the disclosure requirements for defined benefit plans. Tha Bank is curmently
assessing the impact thal 1AS 19 could have on 15 financial statements,

IAS 27 Separate Fimanclal Slatements (hereinafier, IAS 27), revised in May 2011, effective for annual perlods beginning an or after January 1, 2013,
with early adoption permitied, contains accounting and disclesure requisements for investments in subsidiaries, jolm ventures and associates when
an enlity presents separate financial statements. |AS 27 provides that, when an entity prapares separate financal statements, such inestments shall
be accounted for either at cost or i accosdance with IFRS 9 Financial |rstruments. |AS 27 was issued together with IFRS 10 Consolidaled
statements, and they superseded IAS 27 Consclidated and Separate Financial Statements (as amended in 2008), The Bank is currently assessing
the impact that IAS 27 could have on ils financial statements,

IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Venlures (hereinafter, |AS 28), revised In May 2011, eFeciive for annual pariods baginning on or after
Jenuary 1, 2013, with eary adoplion permitied, prescribes the accounting for invesiments in assoclates and sets oul the requirements for the
application of the equity method when accounting for investments in assodiales and joint veniures, IAS 28 supersedec 145 28 Investments in
Associates (2003). The Bank is cumently assessing the Impad (hal I1AS 28 could have on iis financial statements.

IFRS 8 Financial Instruments {hereinafter, IFRS 8), ongirally issued in Movember 2008, subsecusntly reissued in October 2010 and smended in
December 2011, effective for annual periods beginning on oo after January 1, 2015, with early adoption permittad, will eventually replace |AS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, IFRS 8 introduces new requirements for classifying and measuring financial assets.
Specifically, for the subsequent measurement, al financial assets shall be classified as those measured at amortised cos! and those measured at fair
valua through profit of lass, and an antity can make an imevocable election to recognize revaluation of equity instruments not heid for sale throwgh
ociher comprahensive income in its statement of other comprehensive income. Marny requiremants for classification and measurement of financial
lisbilifes were camed over from IAS 30 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement to IFRS 8 without any amendments. The main
difference s thal changes in ithe credil risk of financlal liabiies measured at fair value thraugh profit or loss shall be recognised and discosed in
other comprehensive income. Tha Bank is cumently assessing the impact that IFRS 9 could have on its finarcial stalements.

IFRS 11 Jont Arrengements. (herelnafter, IFRS 11), issued in May 2011, effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013, with
early adoption permitied, improves the accounting for joint arangements by introducing an approach that requires a party 1o a joint arengement to
recognize its rights and obligations arising from the arrangement, The dassification of a joint arangement will depends upon the rights and
obligations of the parties lo e amangemant. The standard provides that a joint arrangement may be classified as either & joint operation o a joint
venture. IFRS 11 also prescribes that the proporfionate consolidation method cannot be used lo account for joinl arrangements, IFRS 11 superseded
(IA5) 31 Interest in Jaint Ventures and SIC 13 Jeintly Conlrolled Enlities — Non-monetary Sontribulions by Venturers, B The Bank is currantiy
assessing the impact that IFRS 11 could have on its financal statemeants

IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities (hereinafter, IFRS 12), issued in May 2011, effective for annual periods beginning on or after
danuary 1, 2013, with early adoption permitted, is a new inlemational financial reporling standard requiring disclosures sbout an enlity's nterests in
ciher enflities, including subsidiaries, |oinl arrangements, associates and unconsalidated struchured entities. The Bank is currenlly assessing the
impact that IFRS 12 cowld have on its financial staterments.

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement (hereinafies, IFRS 13), issued in May 2011, effective for annual perods beginning on or after January 1, 2013, with
early adoption permitted, deflnes fair value, provides a single IFRS framework for measuring fair value and requires disclosures sbout fair value
measurement. FRS 13 applies where anather IFRS requires or allows fair value measurements or disclosures about fair value measurements. It
does not introdece any new redquiraments to measure an asset or a llability at fair value, change whal ks measursd ai fair value in IFRS or address
how Lo prasent changes in falr value. The Bank is curently assessing the impact that IFRS 13 could have on it financial stataments.



1CBC (Moszow)
Financial slatements for the year ended Decemoer 31, 2012
{in thousands of Russian Rubles, unless otharwmss staled)

Ameandmeants to WAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements {hereinafter, IAS 1), Presentation of Cther Comprehensive Income, issueed in June 2011,
effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2012, with early adoption permitted, requires that tlems presented in other comprehersive
income shall be groeped based on whether they are potentially reclassifisbls to profit or loss subsequently. The amencments fo IAS 1 only revise the
way other comprebensive income Is presented and do not affect on the fimancial positions or amounts In the income statement.

Amandmanis lo 1AS 32 Fimancial Insirumenis: Presentation (hereinafier, |AS 32), Dffsettng Financlal Assets and Financial Liabililies, issued m
December 2011, effeclive for annual pericds beginning on or after January 1, 2014, with retrospective adoplion pamitted. The amendments clanfy
the meaning of 'curmently has a legal enforceabls night bo set-off end also clarify the apphcalion of the 145 32 offsefling critena o setflement syslems
(such as central clearing house syslems) which apply gross settlernent mechanisms that are notl simultaneous, The Bank is cuently assessing the
impact that these amendments could have on its finenciel statements.

Amendmants fo IFRS 7 Financial instruments: Disclosures, Disclosures — Ofisetling Financial Assets and Financial Liabilltles, issused in December
2011, effective lor annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013, with retrospective adoption permitted, provide users of an entity's financial
staternents with information to hedp them to evaluate the effect or poteniial effect of offsatting on the entity's financial position, analyse and compare
financial stalements prepared in accordance with IFRS with those prepared in saccordance with US GAAP, The Bank is currently assessing the
mpact that these amendments could have on its financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 11 IFRS 12 Consolidated Financial Statements, Joint Arrangements and Disclosure of Inleresis in Other Entities:
Transition Guidanca, issusd in June 2012, eflectve for amnual periods begnning o or after January 1, 2013, with eady adoption permitted, provide
an entity with transition refied as to present edjusted comparative information in its fnancial stalement for the immedialely pracading comparativa
period only.

Improvemants o IFRS (2009-2011), issued In May 2012, effective for annuad perinds beginnimg on or after January 1, 2013, The Intemational
Accounting Standards Board isseed a collection of amendments to IFRS mainly to remedy internal con-compliance: and clarify the wording

amendments to |AS 1 Presertation of Financial Statements specify the composition of a complete set of Fnancal slatements and darify
reguirements or comparative information, The Bank is currently assessing the impact that these amendments could have on its Snancial
slatemenls:

amendments to 1AS 16 Property and equipmenl address classification of spare pans and senvicing equipmesnt within property and equipment. The
Bank is cumently azsessing the impact thal these amendmants could have on its financial stalements;

amendments to |AS 32 Financial Instruments. Presentalion clerfy tax eflect of distributions to hodders of equity instruments. The Bank is currantly
assessing the impact that these amendments could have on Its financial statements;

amendments 1o LAS 34 Inderim Financial Reporting address information o be dsclosed for reporiable segments. The Bank is cumenlly assessing
the impact that these amendments could have on its finandal stalements;

amendments to IFRS * First-ime Adoptien of International Financial Reporting Standards address repeated application of IFRS 1 and bomrowing
costs releting 1o qualifying assets for which the commencement date for capitalisafion is before the date of transition to IFRS. The Bank is
currently assessing the impact that these amendments could have on its financial statemenis.

The Bank is currently assessing the imgact thet these changes could have on its financial sialements.
The Bank believes thal thase standards and interpretations will not have a significant impact on its fimancial stalements at their first-ime adoption

Financial statements require estimales and assumptions that influence volume of assets and liabdlities 1o be recognised, disclosures 1o contingent
aszsels and liabisties ai the date of financial statements, and also income and expense during the reporting period.

Estimates made by the Bank's direction during the adopticn of the accourting polices that have a significant mpact on amounts recogrised in the
financial statements and that are most sianificant for the fmancial stalerments are disclosed in notes.

4  Accounting principles

4.1 Key Valuation Technigues
When recognizing financial instruments, the Banks apples the following valuation fechnigues:
- at fair value,
- at amortised cosl, or
- alcost
Fair value i3 the amount for which an assel could be exchanged, or a habilty setlled, between knowledgeable, willing parties In an amm's length
transaction.
Financial instruments are regarded as guoled in an active market i their guoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange through
information analysis systems or from other information sources and those prices represent actual and regularly cccurring market ransaclions on an
arm's kength basis.
Fair value of quoted financial instruments is based on:
—  quoted market prices for, &5 a rule, financial instruments trading throwgh the organizers of the trading;
the asking price for financial assets and the bid price for financal liabilities and (he estmated fair value based on the information and analytical
systems (such as Reulers and Bipombeng), market dealers and other insfutions.
If the market for a financial Instrumeant in not ective, the following informetion can be wsed for fair value measurement:
recant quoted market price {asking [bid) price) from incependent sources if no significant changes occurred in the economic situation fo the
reparting date;
actual price: ol the ransacton made by the Bank in the common cowrse of business if no sigrificant changes ocourmed from the transaction dala
to the reporiing date.
In the event of significant changes, the most recent guoted price (ransactions price) shall be adjusted to the change in the guoted price (ransaction
price ) for similar financial instruments. The recent guolted price (ransaction phce) of debt securities can be adjustad with account on the croculation
perod of the debt security
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Falr value measurement |s based on a going concem principbe of an antity that has neither the intention nor the need 1o Beuldate or curtail materlally
the scale of its operations or perform transection on unfavorable conditions. Thus, the fair value is not equal o the amount that the Bank receives al
an involuniary transaction, kquidation procedure or at going-sut-of-business sell

The fair value of financial instruments when quoled markel prices from exiemal resources are not avaikabie s measurad by such techniques as
discounted cash flow and financial analysis of invesiment objacts. Any valsation technique widely applied by markel participants and evidencing
reliabdity of measurement and pricing resulled from actual market ransacions may be applied for measuring the price of financial instroments,

A valyation technique may be chasen for any individual measurement of fair value: and If not Jusiified ciherwise technigues based on the quoted
market prices and bid and asking prices are applied, The fair value of financial instruments is measured depending an varipus factors, circumstances
and requires profassional judgments,

The Bank classifies information used to measure the fair value of a firancial instrument depending on the materiality of input data used for valuaton
as follows:

= cument prices iquotes) in an active marke! of financial instruments that are squivalent {o the financial insrument being evaluated (Lewvel 1);

in the absence of information on cument prices (quotes), the price of the latest transaction made in an active market, if no significant changes in
economic congiions occurred from the moment of the fransaction until the end of tha reporiing period, and cument prices (quotes) for
equivalent financial instruments if the corditions have changed slnce the time of the transaction, as well &s infomation based on chasarvable
market data (Level 2);

- prices caleualed using valustion methods whose input date are nat bassd on obsarvable markst data (Leved 3).

The amorised cost of a financial asset or a fnancial BabRy Is the amount at which the financial asset or financial liabllity is measured al inital
recognition less any paid or received cash, adjusted to cumiative amortization of any difference between the initial amou and the malurity amaount
and to recognised impairment. Amortization of the stated difference i made using the effective interest method. Accrued interest includes
amartization of transaclion costs ceferred at infial recognition and of any premium ar discount to matursty amount using the effective interest method.
Accrued interest income and accrued inferes! expense, incdluding both accrued coupon and amortised discount or premium are ol presented
separately and ars induded in the camying amount of related assets and liabilities

For variable rate financial assets and financial Babilities, cash flows and effective interest rate are revalusd at the establishment date of new Coupon
(interesl) rate. The effective interest rate is revalund on the base of the curent camying amount and eslimated futurs payrents. The current
amortised cost of the financial nstrument is nof changed; the further measurement of the amortised cost is based on the new sfective in‘ereat rale

The effective interest method is a mathod of cadculating the amortised cost of & fnancial assel or & fnancial fiabiity and of allocasing the imerest
income of interes| expense over the ralevan: useful life of the financial assed or financial Kability.

The effective interes! rale i the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipds through the expected life of the financal
instrument o, if applcable, a sharter period to the net camying amount of the financial 2sset or the financal lizhility. When calculating the effactive
interest rate, the Bank estimates cash flows considenng all contractual ferms of the financial instrement (e.g. prepayment) but does nal consider
futwre credit losses.

Thiz caleulation includes all fees and points paid or received between the parties o the contract that are an imegral part of the effactive interes: rate,
transaclion costs and all other premiums or discounts. When issued loans and other deb! instruments become doubtful of collection. thesy are writtan
down 1o thelr recoverable amounts and nterest income s thersafier recognised based on the rate of interest thal was used to discount the fullre
cash flows for the purpose of measuring the recoverahle amount,

As expecied, cash flows and estimaled kfe of a group of similar financial mstruments can be reliably measured. However, in rare crcumstances
when cash flows and expected life of a financial instnament cannot be measured, the Bank shall use contractual cash fiows within the sntire
contraciual term of the financial Instrument.

Cost s the amount of cash or cash equivalants paid of the fair value of other consideration given 1o acquire an asset al the ime of its acquisition
Including transactions cosl. Cost method spplies only to investments in debt Instruments the market for which is nof active and whose falr value
cannot be refiably measured and to related denvatives the markst for which is not active and which are settled through such unqueted daebt
instruments, Transaclion costs are incremental costs directly atiributable to acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial insfrument. They inchude fes
and commission pald to agents, consultants, brokers, dealers, levies paid 10 supervisory authorities Bnd stock exchanges, and property ranster
texes and levies. Transaction costs exclude bonuses and discounts on debt abilties, finance costs, internal administrative and siorage expensas.

4.2  Infial Recognition of Financial instrumenis

Whan the Bank recognizes a fnancial asset or financial Kability initially, it shall measure them al its fair value plus, inthe case of a financial asset or
financial liagility et at fair value through profit or koss, ransachion costs that are diractly atirbutable to the acquisiion or issue of the financal assel
of financial lakility, Prafit or loss on intial recognition of a financial ssset o a financial liability is only recorded if there is @ differance between the fair
value and lransaction price which can be evidenced by other obserable currenl market fransacions In the same instrument or by a valuation
technigue whose inpuls include only data from cbesrveble markets.

Under ususl payment conditions, purchese and sale of financial assets are recorded at the ransaction date. ie. at tha date when the Bank shall
purchase o sefl this assel, or 8t the paymen! date, ie. at the date when a financial assst s delivered 1o or by the Bank, The Bank consistenly
applies the method selectad 1o all sales and purchases of financial assels designated to the same category of financial assets, For this pumpose,
there are two separate categories: financial assets held for sale and financial assets at fair valee trough profit or loss

Under transacbon date method:

= @financisl asst t2 be received and commitment to pay for i are recognised at the transaction date;

= @ financial asset to be sold, and any profit or loss on s disposal, and recefvables from custormer to be repaid are derecognised at the
Under payment date method: £

= anassel |s recognised when the Bank receives il

= @nassel s derecognised and profit or loss on ils disposal i recognised when the Bank delivars it
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Undear payrent date method, the Bank recognizes any change in the fair value of a financlal assel to be delivered batwean the transaclion dale and
the payment date &5 it recognizes a change in the value of the asset purchased, i.e. the chanrge in value of assets measured at cos! or amortised
cost s not recognised, it i charged against profil or loss with regard to assels designaled as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and is
recognised among sther components of statement of changes in equity applicable o assets designated as available for sale.

Under payment date method, transactions are classified as those with dervative financial instrument until payments are made.

4.3  impaimment of Financial Azsafs
Ir order to relably disclose the risk exposures, the Bank makes provisions for investments in all categories of financial assets, except for financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss
A financial asset is impaired and mpairment losses are incurmed only if there & objective evidence of impaiment as a resull of one or more events
that accwred after the initial recognition of the asset (a "loss event”) and that koss event (or events) has an impact on the estrmated future cazh flows
of the financial asset that can be reliably estimated
Objective evidence for the Bank that a financial asset is impaired or not fwhether or net there is a loss event) ks as fallows:
- payment has been delayed and the delay in payment cannct be related 1o failure of the payment system;
the bomower or issuer faces significant financial difficulty that is evidenced by the financial statements of the borrower or issuer received by the
Bank;
= I becoming probable that the borrower or the issuer will enter bankruploy,
duse 1o adverse changes in the payment salus of borrowers or issuers cacsed by changes in national or local economic conditions that have an
impact on the bomower or the issuer,
= fhe value of the secunty has considerabdy decreased due to unfaverable market conditions;
= fthe lender, for economic or kegal reasons, granting to the borower a concession that the lender would rot othersise consider,
= fthe assets have bean given Lo the borrower in order to satthe a Kabdity of an earlier given asset;
disappearance of an aclive market for that financial asset because the issuer's financial difficulties (not because the asset is not Iraded in a
mar<el),
information on any existant breaches of contracts for similar finencial asses by the issuer or the borrower,
tlmulrmuﬂ lesses in financial zssels cared at amortised cost are recognisad in profit or less whan incurred due to one or more events (‘loss
evanis™) after tha initial recognition of the financial assel.
The Bank does not recognize impasmant kasses at initial recognition of financial assets.

i the Bank determines that no abjecthse evidence exists that impairment was incured for an individually assessed financial asset, whethor significant
or not, i includes the asset in a group of financial assels with similar credit nsk characteristics and collectively assess them for impalmmeant.

Far the purposes of a collective assessment of impairment, financial essets are groupad on the basis of simikar credil risk characteristica. Thosa
characteristics are relevant Io the estimation of future cash flows for groups of such assets by being indicative of the debtors' abdity to pay all
amounts due according to the contractual 1erms of the assets being evaluated,

Fulure cash flows within a group of firancial assets o be collectively assessed for impairment are estimated on the base of the contractual cash
flows over the remaining ke of the assel and on the base of the historical loss expenence of the Bank which will appear as a residl of loss events
and on the possibilty o recover the past-due debls. The historical loss experience s adjusted on the basiz of relevant cbservable data that reflect
currerl sconomic condiions that have nol affected the prior periods or to remove the past effects unobservable in the cument perod.

Impaimment Ipsses are recognised hrowgh an allowance account to write down the assst’s carrying amount to the presemt value of expected cash
fiws [which excludes future credit losses thal have nol been incurred) discounted at the odginal effective interest ratz of the assel. The calculabion
of the discounted value of expecled cash flows of a collateralized finandal asset includes cash Aows thal may arlse upon the sale of the collaterad,
less the sale cost, regardless of the degres of probabiity of such sale,

If, in & subsequent pericd, the amount of the mpairment loss decrezses and the decrease can be objeclively related o an event occurring after the
impaiment loss has been recognised (such &s improvement in the deblor's credii rating), the previously recognised Impairment loss is reversed by
adjusting the provison account end recorded within profit or loss.

Afier a loan has been adjusted fo the repaymenl amount as a result of impairment, the interest income is reflected on the basis of the inerast rate
that was used for discounding future cash flows in order to measure npeirment loss,

Uncoliectible financial assets are written off against the related impairment loss provisson in the statement of financal position after all the necessary
procedures 1o recover lhe assel have been compleled and the amount of the loss has been determined,

When writing-off unrecoverable debils and reldated interests, the Bank takes the necessary and approprate staps to collect this amounl thal anse from
law, business customs or a conlracl.

Unrecoverable debs and related inlerests are waitlen off by means of the provision for patential impairment losses in accordance with the resclution
of the Bank's competent authority on the basis of documents confieming the fallure of counterparty 1o perform its obligations at keast within one year,
Where the debl exceeds 1% of the Bank's equity, writing-cff of this debx shall be confiomed by reports of competent govermment athorities (udicial
reporis, reports of the Federal Service of Court Bailil's and their equivalents),

When in case of review of condiions for impaired financial assets reviewed conditions differ markedly from the previous those, a new assel is inifially
recognised at fair value.

Impaimment losses on avalable-for-sale financial assets are recognised in profit or loss when incurmed due to one or more events (loss events”) after
the initial recognition of the available-tar-sale financial assels.

A corsiderable or prolonged decrease in fair value of an equity sacunty designated as avadable for sale below s acquisition cost indicates its
impairment. In case of moairment indication, the cumulative loss defined as the difference betwesan the acquisiton cos! and the current fair value,
less any impaimment loss previously recognised in profit or loss is ransferred from statement of changes n equity io profil or loss, Impairment losses
on equity instrumerts are not reversed through profit and |oss accounts; increase n the fair value afler impairmment is recognised directly in statement
of changes in equity.

In case of debd instruments designated as avaiiable for sale, impairment is assessed on the same criteria ('loss everts”) as for financial assets
carfied @ amorised cost The koss amound to be reciassified into prafl or loss |s the difference between the purchase price of the asset (less
principle cayments and amortization of assets evaluated by effective inlerest methoc) and the cument fair value less the Impairment loss related to
the asset that have been recognised In profit or loss, Inberest earmed on impaired assets are based on the amontised costs induding impairmant loss
recognised using the interes! rale applied for discounting future cash Pows for purposes of impairment loss assessmanl [rlerest moome ks
recognised against “Interest income” of the income statement. If, in a subsequent pariod, the fair value of a debt instrument classified as available for
sale increases and the increase can be obgectively related to an evenl occuming affer the imparment loss was recognised in proft or loss, the
impasmment loss is reversed through profit and loss accounts of ihe current reporling period.
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4.4 Derecognibon of Financial Assels

The Bank darecognizes financlal assets only when;

~  fhe righis to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

—  the Bank transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition.

The Bank transfers a financial asset only if:

—  the Bank transfers e contractual nghts 1o recesve the cash lows from the financial asset; or

the: Bank retains the contractudl rights 1o recelve the cash flows from the financial asset, but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash

flows io one of more third parties, and when the certain other condifions are met,

Lipon Iransfer of a fnancial assel, the Bank evaluates the degree fo which |t retains risks and benefils asseciated wilh cwning this fimancial asset.

Where the Bank:

transfers all the significant neks and benefits associated with owning a financial assat, the financial assel is derecognised. Rights or obligations

crealed or retained in the iransfer are recognised separately as assets or liabilities;

- retains subsiantially nsks and benefits associated with owning a financal assel, recognition of this financial asset = continuad,
neither retains nor ranslers substantially all the risks and benefils associaled with owning a financial assat, 1 determines whether the control
aver the financial assel is retained. IF the eontrol is not retained, the Bank derecognizes the transfemed financial sssel Rights or obligabons
created or retained in the transler are recognised separately as assets or lasilites. When control is retained, the Bank continues lo recognize
the: fransfesred financial asset to the extant of participant in it

When an asset |s redesignaied wih a consideratle change In the lerms, the redesignated assel is derscognised and the esset received is

recognised in the balance sheet as an addition

When an asset is redesignated withoul considerable changes in the terms, the received asset is carred al fhe carrying amount of the redesignated

assel,

4.5 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivasents inchude cash on hand, accounts balances in current accounts of the Bank, arnd cash equivalents in the forms of shoe-
terrn and highly liquid investmenis easlly convertible into a certain amount of cash and exposed to nsignificant nsk of value fluctuation. All short term
intarbank placements, beyond ovemight placements. ars included in due from pther banks. Amounts in respect of which there are any limitatons on
their use shall be excluded from cash and cash equivalents

4.6 Due from the Bank of Russia (Centra’ Banks)

Diue from the Bank of Russka {central banks) are ‘unds deposiled with the Bank of Russia which are nol intended for financing current ransactions of
the Benk. Consequently, they are nol considered as pan of cash and cash equivatents for the purposes of the cash flow slatement,

4.7 Fimancisl Aszels al Fair Vaie through Profit and Loss

A financial asse! is designated as a financial assst al falr value through profit or loss if it s scquired with a view 1o subsegquent disposal. Derivatives
wilh positive fair value are also dassified as financizl assets &t fair value through profit or loss, except for derivates thal are designated as effective
hedging Instruments. .
Initially and consequently financial assets at fair value (hrough profit or loss are recorded al fair value fhal is based on quated market prices or on the
basis of different valuation technigues uslng an assumption on profitability to realize these financial assets in the future. Depending on
drcumstances, different valuation technigues can be applied. Available published quoted market prices ans the bes| basis for the fair value of an
instrument.

When guoted market prices are nol avallable, techniques related to the information on recent market transactions between knowledgeabls willing
and indeperdent parties or to cument fair value of simitar instrumerts or 1o analysis of the discounted cash flow, or model for option price
measurement are used. When here |s a reliable valuation technique widsly used by the market parlicipants 1o detemine the price of instruments
that has proved relisbdity of estimated prices, it is advisable to apply such a tednique

Realizad and unrealized income and expenses of transactions with financlal assets at fair value through profil and boss are recorded in the incomse
staternent immediately at the perod when they occur as income less transaction costs related 10 financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,

Interest income fram financial assets al fair value through profit is recorded in the income statement as interest incame from financial assels at fair
value thraugh profit and loss. Dividends received are recorded against dividend reverue in the income staternent within operating income.

Purchasze and sale of financial assels al fzir valus through profit or loss that shall be delivared within the tims limit asiablished gat this marke! by law
ar convention (regular way purchase and sale), are recorded &t the transacion dale, Le. at the date when the Bank shall purchase or sell this assel

Otherwisz such fransactions are recorced within dervates until payments arg made.
The Bank classifies financial assets at fair value throwgh profit and boss in the approghate category at the acquisition date. Financial asssts classified
as financial assats at fair vabue trough prafit and loss are not to be reclassfied.

4.8 Dwe from Ofher Banks

Due from other banks includes non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an aclive markel provided
by the Bank to bank-contractors {inclucing the Bank of Russia), other than:

a) "ovemnight” placements:

b those that the antity intends to sell immediately or in the near lerm, which shall be dassified as held for sale, and those thal the Bank wpon initial
recognition designates as al fair value through profit or loss;

) those that the Bank upon iniliaf recognition designates as available for sale;

d} those for which the holder may nol recover substanlially all of its instial investment, other than because of credit detetoration, which shall be
classified as available for sale,

The Bank decided o reclassily Snancial assels qualifying credits and recefvables from assets at fair value though profit or loss and assels availabls
for sale 1o due from other banks
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The funds placed al other banks are récognised when cash i given (placed). Due from other banks are carmied at fair value at initia recogniton.
Financial assets reclassified from assels al fair value through profil o loss or from assets avadable for sale must be recognised at fir valua on the
date of reclazsification. Profil or loss already recognised in profit and loss at e time of financial assets reclassification from assets at fair value
through profit or loss are unracoverable. Subsequently. extended loans and placed deposits are recorded al amorised cost less provisions for
impairment. The amortised cost is based on the falr value of a loan or deposit calculated using existing interest rates applicable to siméar loans and
deposils, effective on the date a loan was extended or deposit was placad

The differance between the fair value and the nominal value of a lpan (deposit) occumng when kboans are extended (deposits are placed) &t interest
rates above or below exisling rates is recorded in the comprehensive income staterment when such loan is extended (deposil is pleced) against
income (expenses) on assets invested at rates above (below) the market rates. Subsequently, the carmyng amount of such logns (deposits) is
adjusted to amortizalion of these gains [loss) and the interest income i recognised in the income statement, using the effective interest method,

The procadure for determining impairment of financial assets & set oul in 4.3 Impaiment of Financial Assets.

4.9 Loans and Receivables

This category includes non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted In an active market, other than:

a) those that the Bank intends 1o sed immediaiety or in the near term, which shall be dassified as held for trading, and thase that the Bank on initial
recognition designates as at fair valus through profit er loss;

b} those that the Bank upan the initial recognition designates as available for sale;

c) those for which the nolder may nol recover substantially all of its initial Investment, other than because of credit deterioration, which shall be
classifisd as avadable for sale.

Initial recognition of oans and receivables is carmied at fair value plus transaction costs (i.e, the lair value of the consideration paid or received). If an
active market exists, the fair value of loans and receivables is measured as current cost of all future proceedings (payments) discounied by the
prevalling market rate for & similar instrument. This market rate broken down by cumencies, terms and bormowers is published al the website of the
Bank of Russia, If an active merket does mot exist, there can be apphed one of valualion techréques to measure the fair value of lbans and
receivables.

Subsequent measuremant of loans and recaivebles is carried at amortised cost using the affective interest methed.

Loans and recefvables are recorded when cash is provided to bormowers (individuals or credil institutions). Inlerest-beaning loans other than market
Interes! rates are maasured at paymant date at fair value that is the principle and fulure inlerest payments discounted by interast market rates for
similar baans.

The difference batween the fair value and the nominal value of a loan is recorded in the income statement as income from assels al rates higher
than the markel rates ar a5 an expense from assets at rates lower than the market rates. Subsequently, the carrying amount of these loans will be
adjusted by amortization of income (expansa) from the kan and the retated income is recorded in the income statement wsing the effeclive interest
mathod.

The Bank awvoids impairment kosses on initial recognition of loans and receivables, Risks associaled with providing boans to borrowers that initislly
bear a heightsned risk are recognised at higher loan intarest rate (risk pramium) which is calculated as average percent of loen indebiedness behird
by 30 days and mone under loans dassified to 3 and higher risk groups that s determined on the basis of the Bank's stalistical data for the: last
reparting year, and also market interast rates for simiar loans published on the website of the Bank of Russia

Loans and receivables are impaired If, and only if, there is objective evidence of impaiment as a resulk of one or more events that ocourred aller the:
initial recognition of the asset and losses have an Impact on the estimaled fulure cash flows of the financial assel or group of financial assets that
can be relably estimated.

Tha amount of loss is measured as the difference between the camying value of the asset and estimated future cash flaws discounted by orlginal
effective interest rate for this assat.

The carrying amaunt of loans and recevables is reduced by means of the provision for impairment of loan portfolio. Aler assessment of objeciive:
avidence of impairment on an individual basis, in case of absance of such evidence, loans are included in a group of financial assels with similar
credit risk to assess any evidence of their impakrment on an aggregate besis

Asz at Decamber 31, 2012, the Bank assesses evidence of iImpairmen both on an individual snd aggregate basis.

Tha Bank developed and approved a credil risk assessmenl procedwe which is used by the Bank to periomm an anafysis for impairment of
recaivables and assessment of cash Mows. The amount of bss on impaimment of loans classified in the first fsk group is determined by caloulation of
general economic rsk for banking secior on the basis of siatistical data publshed in e online edtion of banking sector digest of the Russian
Federation on the website of the Bank of Russia.

Unrecoverable loans are wiitten off by means of the provision for impairment. \Writing off can be realized only afler all procedures are compleled and
the loss amount |5 measured. Recovery of earlier writtan off amounts is credited o changes in provisions for impalmment (change in impairment
amaurnis) of the koan portfelo in the income statement. Decrease of earlier created provision for impaimment of the lcan portfolio ks credited (o change
I provissan for mpairment (chamge in impairment amounts) of loan portfolio in the ncoma stalement

4 10 Avadable-for-sale financial assels

This calegory includes non-derivative financial assels cesigrated as available-for-sale or nol dassified as loans and recervables, held-to-maturity
investments, and financial assets al fair value theaugh profit and loss, The Bank classifies financial assatls at the acquisition date

Available-for-sale financial assets are initially camed at fair value plus lransaction cosls that are directly aftributable 1o the acquisition of the financial
pzsel The far value is usually represented by its acouisition cost. Subsequently, available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value based
on the guated market price.

Availabde-for-sale investments that do not have a quoted markst price from independent sources ane measured al tair value of recent sale of similar
equity securites by independent third parties, based on analysis of other information such as discounied cash flows and olber financial information
on the investment object and olher valuation techniques.

Depending on crcumstances, there can be applied different valuation technigues Invesimm in equity thal do not have quoted market prices are
recogrised al cost.

Unreakzed gans ard losses resulting from change i fair valoe of available-for-sale financial assets are recognésad in the statement of changes in
BOuity.
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On digposal of available-for-sale inancial assets, ralated accumulated wnrealised gains and losses are Included in the Income statement as Income
less expenses form transactions with available-for-sale financial assets. Impakment and recovery of eadier impaired valse of available-for-sale
financial assets are recorded in the income slatement

In the event fhe camying amount of available-for-sale financial assets excesds ther estmated recoverable cost, the camying amount of the assels is
redisced. The recoverable cost is the curent cost of estimated future cash flows discountad by current markel pece of similar financial asset,

Interest income from available-for-sale financial assets is recorded in the income statement as interes! income from avallable-for-sale financial
assels Dividends received ara recorded in the incorme stalement as income from dividends within Incame from ransadions with securnties,

Under usval payment conditions, purchase and sabke of available-lor-sale finandal assels are recorded at the transacton date, i.e, at the date when
the Bank shall purchase or sell this asset, (Altermatively, the Bank may recond them al tha payment date).
All other purchase and sale are recarded as forward Iransactions entil paymends are mads,

4.11 Hedd-to-Maturty Financial Assels

This category includes financial assats with fixed maturity that the Bank has the positive intention and albdity to hold to maturity. The Bank dassifies
financial assels at the acquisiton date The Bank assesses s intenlicn and ability to hold the financial assets designated as held-lo-maturity 1o
maturity at the end of every reporting period but not ondy at the inital recognition date of such firancial assets.

Held-to-matunity finencial assets are inifially camied at falr value plus rensaclion costs and subsequently at amortised cost using the effective intorest
method less provision for impairmant which is fhe difference between the camying amount and the current cost of estimated fulure cash Nows
discounted by odginal effective Intersst method

Interest income from held-lo-maturity inancial assets is recorded in the income stalement as interest income from held-to-malurity financial assats.

Under usual payment conditions, purchase and sale of held-lo-maturity financial assels are recorded a1 the ransaction date, Le. at the date when the
Bank shall purchase or sel this assel. All other purchase and sale ara recorded as foraard transactions until payments are made,

4.12 Property and equprment

Propery and equipment are recognised sither at acquisition cost restated o the sguivalent purchasing power of the cemency ol the Russian
Federation as on January 1, 2003 for assets acquired prior to Januany 1, 2003 or in revalued amount, as noted below, less accumulated depreciation
and praviskon for impairment, where reguired.

In the event the camying amount of the asset exceeds its estimated recoverable cost, the camying amount of the asset ks reduced |o ks recoverabla
cosd, and the difference is recorded in the income slatement. The eslimated recoverable cost is the highest of fair value of the asset less realization
cosi and valve of its usage.

The Bank assesses any indication of impairmeant of property and equipment at the end of every reporing period. In the event such indication exsts,
the Bank measures recoverable cosl as the higher of nel realisable value of the property and equipment and vahse of their usage.

In the event the camying amount of property and equipment exceeds their estimated recoverable cost the carmying amodant of propery and
equipment is reduced to their recoverable cost, and the difierence is recorded in the income statement as impairment losses of property and
equipment unbess they are previously revaluated. In this case, revaluaticn surplus is excluded, and any addilional boss ks recognised in prof® or loss.
Impairment loss recogrised with mspect lo properly and eguipment in prior years is reversed when there are any changes in esbmates used to
measure recoverabie cost of propery and egquipment.

Gainz and losses ansing from disposal of propery and equipments are measured at carmying amount end are accounted for &t celculating the income
(loss) amount. Cosis of repairs and maintenance are recorded in the income statement when incurmed.

4.13 Depracabion

Depreciation is charged on a streéight-lire basls over the useful ife of assets using the following depreciation rates:
Group of property and equipment Dreprecialion rales
Office equipment 4.9%-48%
Fumiture and other Implemants 4.5%-19,T%
Motor vehiclas 324%

The depraciation method applied to an asset shall be reviewed at least al each financial year-end and, If there has been a significant change in the
depraciation approach to the assei, the method shall be changsd to reflect the changed approach. Therefore, the effed of the change will be
accounted for as a change in accounting estimate in accordance with IAS 8 IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors.

Depreciation is recognised even # the far value of an assel exceeds ds camying amouni under condilion its residual valse does not excsed ils
camying amount, Repair and maintenance of an assel do not exclude the need to depreciate it.

Deprecition is recognised when an assel is available for wse |Le. when its location and condition enable the Bank to use it n accordance with s
intentions, Depreciation is derecognised at the date when the assel i derecogrised,

4.14 Operaling leases

Where the Bank is a lessee in an operating leass, the tolal lease payments are recorded in the income stalement on & straight-line bass over the
penod of the lease. Where an operating bease ceases bafore the end of the lease perind, any payment due fo the lessor a5 compensation is repored
a5 expansa in the pericd in which the operating lease ceases
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415 Bomowings

Borrowings include cusiomer accounts, deposits and balances from banis, and other borrowed funds.

Borrowings ane initially recognised at fair value that is the received amount less transaction costs incurred. Subsequently, borrowings are reported at
amortsed cost any difference between nef proceeds and the redemplion vahue is recorded in the income stalemant over the period of bomowings
wsing the elfective intecas! method. (Hadge accounting applies to deposits beanng risks that are hedged through derivativas),

Borrowngs with inferest rates other than markel are measwred al acquisition date at falr value that includes the prindple and the future interest
payments discounted by market interast rates for similar amounts. The difference between the fair and nominal value of thess amounts s recorded in
the income statement as income from bomowsngs al rales lower than the markel rales. Subsequently the caryng amount of borrowings is adjusted
by amortization of initial ncome (expenss) from borrowings and the comespondent expensas are recorded as inferest expenses in the incame
staternent using the effective yield method,

416 Fnancal Liabdites at Fair Value through Profit and Loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss indude derivatives with negative their fair value thal are net camed as hedging instruments and
the seller's obiiation lo deliver securilies at a short sale {obligations ansing on negofiation of a sale of financial nstruments that are nol camied 2t
the tirne of the negotiation),

4.17 Debi Securitles Issued

Detit securities issued Incuwde notes, deposit cenlificates and bonds issued by ihe Bank. Debt security issued are nitially recognised at fair value that
is the received armount {fair value of the property received) bess fransaction costs. Subsaquently, debl securities issued are camad at amortized cost
and any dilfarence between their initial amounl and maturity amoun! |s recorded in the income statement over the circulation peried of the dett
sacurity using the effeciive interest mathod.,

Al Issuance of converlible bonds, the fair value of the oplion on conversion Is measured and separately recognised in the statement of cash flows,
The cutstanding liability on further payments 1o holders of bonds to repay the prnciple and interests & calculated on the basis of the market rate for
equivalent inconvertible bonds and recognised at amortizsed cost using the effective Interest method within other borrowings wntil this liability is
sefiled at conversion or the term o malturity of the bonds is expired

I the: event the Bank repurchases own debt securities, these securifies are removed from the balance sheel and the difference between e carmying
amount of the Habilty and the amount paid is included in income (expense) from (early) settemeni of the liability.

4.18 Trade and Other Payables
The Bank recognizes accounts payable upon fulflling the liabilities by a comracior and carries them atl amortised cost,

4,19 Credit Related Commifments

The Bank enfers into credil related commitments, mduding letters of credit and financial guarantees. Financial guarantees represent imevocabis
assurances 0 make payments in the event that a customer cannot mee! its obligations to thind parties and carry the same credit risk as loans !

Financial guarantees and credit commitments are recognissd mnitially at fair value confrmed, s a nde, by the amount of receved fees and
commisgons, This amount is deprecialed by the stralghi-line method over the commitmeant term, other than credit commitment, if it is probablbe that
the Bank will enter inte a particular boan agreement and will not plan 1o use the loan within a short period afler it is issued; such fee and commission
income ralated to credit commitments are accounted for as deferred income and included in the loan carrying amount on indtial recognition, Af the
end of every reporfing perod commitments are measured al the amortised amgount on initiad recogniion or 8t the best estimation of expansas o
settle commiments as at the end of the reporting period, whichever is higher,

The Bank makes provisions for credit related commitments if losses arising from such commitments are probable.

4.20 Shere Capifel and Share Premium

Share capital is camied at historical cost, For contributions in eash prior to 1 January 2003, inflation is taken into account; non-cash contributions ans
carried at fak value at the contribution date.

Share premium represents contributions te the share capital in excess of par value of issued shares,

4.21 Treaswy Stock

‘When the Bank or its subsidaries redeem the Bank's shares, the equily is decreased by the amount paid, induding all addittonal ransaction cosls
less taes until these shares are sold or the equity is decreased by their par valua. When such shares are thereafter sold the amount received s
included with the equity.

4.22 Dividends

Dwidends declared afier the date of the balance shest are reported in notes o evends afier the balance sheet date, Dividends are paid and other
profit i cistributed on the basis of nel profit for the current year as spedfied in the accounting repors preparad in accordance with legislation of the
Russian Federation.

If the Bank declarss dividends 1o holders of equily instrurments afier the end of the reporting period they &re not recognised es liabiities al the end of
the reposting period.

Dividends are reported in the statement as a distribution of profd when they are approved by general meeting of shareholders (general maeeting of
participants ).

4.23 Income and Expense Recognifion

Interest income and expense are recorded in the income stalement for all debt instruments on an scoual basis using the effective interesi method

Fees attibutable 1o the affective interest rate incude orgination fees receved or paid by the Bank relating to the creation or acquisition of a financial
asset or issuance of a nanciad liabdity, for example fees for evalualing creditworthiness, evaluating and recording guarantees or collateral,
negabating the terms of the instument and for processing transaction documents. Commissions for the oblgation to provide a loan al markel prices
received by the Bank farm an integral part of the effeclive ntarest rate if it s probakle that the Bank wil enter inlo a particubar loan agreemaent and
will nal plan to use the loan within @ short period after @ is issued. The Bank does not cassify commitments fo orginata loans as financial kabilities at
fair value through profit or boss.
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When issuec foans and other debt instruments become doubtiul of collection, they are writtan down to their recoverable amounts and interest Incorme
is hereafler recognised based an the interast rate that was used to dscount fulure cash Nows Tor the purpose of measuring the recovarahle amaoent.

Oither fee and commission income and other income and expenses are recorded. a3 a ruke, on an acereal basis during the pericd of provision of a
senice by reference to complelion of the specific ransaction assessed on the basis of the aclual service provided 25 & proportion of the total
senices o be provided,

Fee and commission income from thind party transactions, e.g. from acquisition of loans, shares and other securities or purchase or sale of entities
racaived in such transactions, is recorded upon completion of the transaction. Fee and commission income from investing portfolio managemant and
other management and consulling services are recorded under provisions of relevant senices contracts, 8s 8 rule, n proportion basis of the: Gme
spent. Fes and commission income from services related io management of assets (tnusting management) i recorded under the provisions of the
coniract at the date when the Bank receives the right Lo receive this income and the income amount can be measured, Income fram long-term
sefvices is recognised every reparting period on propordion basis of the sendices provided. The Bank appies the same mathod o services related to
propesty management, financal planning and to cusiody services provided on & constant basis in the ng run.

4.24 income Tax

Tha financial staternents records tax expenses in accordance with legislation of the Russian Federation,

Income tax (recovery) in the income statement for the year includes curen! tawes and changes in deferred faxes, Cusrent tax is calcukated on the
basis of the expacted taxable profit 'or the year wilh income lax rates applicable on the date of the balance sheet. Taxes, other than incomea tax, are
recorded within operating expenses.

Deferred income tax is calculated on the basis of balance assets and liabilties mathed in relation to all temporary differences between the ax base
of assets and labdites and their camying amount in accordance with the financal statements. Dederred tax assets and liabililies are measured al tax
ratzs enacied in this period of substantvely snacled at the end of the reporing periad which are expected to apaly lo the penod when the assets are
realized or the labdithes are settled.

Deferred tax assets are recorded only (o the extent that it is probable that future texable income is available against which the lemporary differences
can ke utilised. Deferred lax assels and labiliies are only set off within the Bark

Dieferred tax arsing from revaluation of available-for-sale financial assels at fair value, with revaluation results credited or charged to sguity, is also
recognised directly in equity. When these financial assets are disposed of, [he respective amounts of deferred mcome lax are reflected in tha
stalement ol ncome

Deferred lax assets and liabilifies are recognised for temporary differences assocated with invesimenis in subsidiaries and assoclates (o the extent
that the Bank s able to contrel the timing of the reversal of the differences and It is probable thal the reversal will not accur in the foreseeable future,

4.25 Foveign Currency Translation

ltems in the Bank's financial statements are measured n the cusrency of the primary economic emvironment in which the Bank operales (functional
currency) a
The financial statements are presented in the national currency of the Russian Federalion thal is the functional cumency of the Bank and the
presemalion currency of thesa financial statements.

Transactions in lereign curency are stated at the official exchange rate of the Bank of Russia al the transaction dale. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulling from the sefflement of the transactions in foreign currency are included in the income statement al the official rate of the Bank af
Russia at the transecton date,

Monedary assets ard Eabilities are ransiated into the currency of the Russan Federation at the official exchange rate of the Bank of Russia at the
dale of the balance shaet.

Foreign exchanga gains and losses resulting from transactions with debt securities and othar moratary financiasl assets at fair value are inchuded in
ineome and expenses from revaleation of foreign cumency,

Gainz and losses relaled to non-manetary items such as equily securities classified as fnancial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
recorded as a parl of income and expenses form revaluation al falr value

Gains and |osses related to non-monetary avaliable-for-sale financial assets are charged aoainst equily through the fund of revalustion of available-
for-sale financial assets.

As on December 31, 2012, the official rate of the Bark of Russia applied for revaluation of foreign currency balances amounted to:

LsD 30.3727
EUR A0 2286
10 CNY A8 7406

Presently the currency of the Russian Federaton is not sasily convertible m most countries cutside the Russian Federation

426 Offzatting

Financial assets and liabiliies are offset and the net amount is reporied in the balance sheet only when there is a legally enforceable right o offset
the recognised amounts, and there i an intenlion 1o either seflie on a net basis. or to realise the asset and setile the [Eabilty simultaneously

4.27 Estimated Liabiities

Estmated liabilites are recognised when the Bank has cbligations (legal or due o business practice] srisen prior the end of the reporing period. To
sefile fhese liabilities, cutflow of economic resources s probable and the amount of the Bsbilities can b reasonable measured

4.28 Efafl Costs and Relaled Confributions

Expenses related to salary, wages. bonuses, contributions to state non-budgelary funds are made when when works are parformed by the Bank's
emplayess; axpenses related 1o lemparary disability, maternity leave and other incentives are made when they ocour,

Tha Bank takes the responsibility for payments related to leaves that the Bank's employees have not used. Such Babdities are recorded in the
stalement of financial position within Crther Lisbilifies and simultaneously in the income stalement &5 leaves falling on the reporting penod and within
undistnbuled profit as keaves talling on the previous period,
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4.20 Related Parfy Transactions
The Bank conducts related party transactions. Parlies are considered (o b related if one party has the absity to control the other party or to exercise
significant influence or joint control over the other party in making financial and operating decisions.

In considering related party redationship, the Bank's attention s directed to the economic substance of the relationship, not merely the: kegal form.

5  Interest income and expense

Intarast income and expense are as follows.

December 31, 2012  December 31, 2011

Intarest moome

Due from financial institutions 229825 B3 855

Loans to customers 118 377 25410

Held-to-maturity financial assets 42 i1 66 544
Total Interest income from assets not at falr value threugh profit or loss 390 €13 175 808
Total interest income 390 613 175 809
Interes! expense

Due to financial institutions 1125 761) (18 480)

Accounts and deposits of individuals and legal entities (10 693) (4 285)

Factoring transactions (32) {5)
Total interest expense on liabilities not at fair value through profit or loss 1136 486) (23 470)
Total interast expanse {136 486) {23 470)
MNet Interest income 254 127 152 339

As al December 31, 2012, the Bank did nol have loans without interest accrual (2011: no loans without interest accrual ).

&  Provisions for impairment and other provisions

Provigions for impairment recognised in profit or losses include contibuticns mace in the cument year io create provisions for impairmert in
accondance with Intermational Accounting Standards.

The change in provisions for impaimment for 2012 is as follows

Incoma mremr; of
Balances a8 sl ot lons for Balances as al Decambar
Write-offs from i impairmant less axp
December 31, 2011 Lz i S e N, w12
for Enpsirment
Change i provistan for impairmment aof inferest
bearing assels
Loars 1o customers 34 346 {14 247) 20099
Total change in provision for impairment of
interest bearing assets 34 345 - {14 247) 20 099
Change in provizion for impairmendt of ather assels
and odher provisions
i:bmh olher provisions and change in estimated 10 788 (83} {10 635) 14
Change in provision for impairment of
recesvables and ofher assets 10708 (£9) {10:863) "
Total change in provision for impairment of other 10783 (59) (10 635) 14

assets and other provisions
Total r.hiniu in provisions for impaimment 45134 (£9) {24 932) 20113
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The change in provisions for mpairment for 2011 is as follows:

Income from recovery of

provisions for

Balances a8 al Batances as al December
Dacambar 31, 2310 Write-cffs from pmlﬂl‘ll :F;ﬂ'l‘lll‘ll :‘I;;m 3, 2011
fat impaimment
Change wn provision for impaimment of intzrest
beaning assels
Loans to customers 34 46 34 346
Total change in provision for impairment of . 34 346 24 M6
interest bearing assels
Change in provision for imparment of other assels
ard olfwer provisions
Change in odher provisions and change in estimaled 10 886 78) 10788
liahilities
Change In provision for impalrment of 10 788
receivables and olhar assels o 78 "
Total change in provision for impalrment of other 10 788
assets and other provisions Iy s .
Total change in provisions for impairment 10 866 34 268 45 134

7  Commission income and expenses

Commission income and expenses are as lTollows:

December 31, 2012

Deceamber 31, 2011

COMmIssion income
Cash transactions 9 787 5124
Guarantess issued 215 116
Other 2853 2 155
Total commission income 12 835 7385
Commigsion expanss
Setflement and cash services, maintenance of accounts |BOB) [447)
Guareniees recejved 1216} -
Brokerage and similar agreements {137) (178)
Transactions with currency valsables 1458) {98)
Omner {B05) {176}
Total commission expense (2.223) (839)
Total commission income and expense 10612 6 496

B Other operating income

Other operating income |s as follows:

December 31, 2012

December 31, 2011

Othar aparaling income
Fines and ather penallias 2390 -
Income from rental of property and cther income from property and equipmsant 5
Income from witing-off unclaimed accounts payable 56
Cithar 2 5
Total cther operating income 2448 10
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g  Administrative and other operating expenses

Administrative and oiher operating expenses are as follows:

December 31, 2012

December 31, 2011

Operaling expeanses
Slall cosls B1 394 56 411
Depreciation 1 647 2685
Charge for the right o use mteflectual property 462 3530
Communications services 5404 4 482
Expenses associaled with property and equipment (maintenance, repair, sala) 4353 5573
Professional services 618 460
fudverlising and marketling 503 1040
Representation cosls 1 248 BIT
Business travel expEnses 2 ORIl 2472
Operating lease expense 20628 20 299
Securlty costs 2014 2014
Tases and duties other than income lax 7537 G474
Imventories writing-off 3038 1484
Inzuranc: EXpEnses 1839 1584
Other operating expenses € 5E3 4 126
Total administrative and other operating expenses 140 353 1 1251'
Staff costs include:
December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011
Stalf costs i
Salaries and bonuses 69 694 &0 46T
Confributions to state funds 10 923 5 555
Cosls of training 500 n7
Other staff benefits 178 172
Total staff costs B1 334 56 411

Other operating axpense mchude labour costs, operating laase expenses, expenses for taxes and duties, costs of communication sarvices, costs of

maintenance, repair and sale of property and equipment and ather operating

2012),

Average monthly salary per employee amounts o RUB

10 Income tax

Income tax comprisas the Tollowing:

114 thousarsd in 2012 (2011 RUE 105 thousand).

expenses (20711: the bresk-down of expenses is simiar to those in

Cecember 31, 212

December 31, 2011

Current income tax (expense) | recovery (44 632} [3 516)
Deferred laxes 4 363 142
Income tax (expenses) [ recovery (40 259) {3 374)

The current income tax rate applicable lo the most part of the Bank's profit for 2012 |s 20% (2011: 20%). In August 2008, to substiute the previous
income tax rate of 24%, a new ircome iax rate of 20% was introduced which is effecilve since January 1, 2008,
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Estimated tax expenses and aciual 1ax expensas are compared below,

December 31, 2012  December 31, 2011

Profit | (Loss) before taxes 213422 3 Mm4
Estimated tax deductions (recovery) at the rate of 20% (42 G34) (6 203}

other permaneni difference 2415 2829
Income tax (expenseas) [ recovery {40 253) (3 374)

Differences between IFRS and tax legislation of the Russian Federation (and other countnies) give rise to temporary differences batween the carrying
amount of assets and lisbilities for financial reporfing purposes and calculation of ncome tax. Tax effects of movements in these temparary
differances for 2012 and 2011 as presentad bebow are recognised at the rate of 20% (2011 20%), excepl for income from govertmeant (municipal)
securibes taxable al the rate of 15%, 9%, 0% (2011: 15%, 9%, 0%).

Change Change

T T ety et T
Tax affect of deducible lemporary differences
Prowisions for impaimment of loan portfolio - . 4 020 - 4 020
Property and equipment: depreciation 1 - 470 - 557
Other ] - 229 - 238
Total deferred tax assels 96 - 4719 . 4815
Unrecognised defered tax assels - - - - =
Met deferred tax assets 98 - 4719 - 4815
Tax effect of taxablz femporary differences
Property and equipment: recognition and measuremant “ £ a5g 5 a5a
Other a . 3} - -
Total deferred tax liabilities 3 " 155 - 359
Tatal net deferred tax assets (liabilities) 93 - 4 363 - 4 455
Doty AN coguamatn copedin L
profit and losses equity
Tax affect of dedudtible lemporary diffarences
Property and equipment: depreciation and revaluaticn a¥ BY
Other 14 (5) !
Total deferred tax assats 14 - B2 - 96
Unrecognised defemed tax assets
Met deferred Llax assets 14 = a2 - 95
Tax effect of tavable tempovary differences
Property and equipment: dapredation and revaluation 63 (63) -
Other a 3
Total deferred tax liabllities 63 - (60} - kS

Total net deferred tax assets (liabilites] (49} . 142 . 93
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11 Eamings (Loss) per share

Basic eamings (loss) per share s calculated by dividing net profit or loss atirioutable to ordinary shares by the weighted avarage numbser of ordinary

shares outstanding during the year less average number of ordinary shares repurchased by the Bank

Parenl enity (the Bank] does not have dilutive patential ordinary shares. Diluted samings per share are thus equal lo the basic eamnings per share.

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011
Eamings {Loss) attributable to shareholders holding ordinary shares of the Bank 173153 27 640
Eamings (Loss) for the year 173153 27 640
Walghted average number of ordimary shares outstanding (in thousands) g2 40
Basic and diuted eamings (loss) per ordinary share (in RUB per share) 167436 691,00

Hasic and diluted samings {loss) per preferrad share (in RUEB per share)

number of shares =0

rumber of shares =0

Eamings (Loss) for year attibadalée to shareholders holding erdinary and prefered shares are calculated a5 follows:

December 31, 2012  December 31, 2011
Earnings (Loss) for the year 173 153 27 B40
Retained eamings for the year 173 153 27 640
Eamings or loss for the year attributable to sharsholders halding ordinary shares 173 153 27 B40

Basic sarmings (loss) per ardinary share {in RUB per share):

December 31, 2012

ﬂa:lmb-lr!‘l.?ﬂf:l

Eamings {Loss) attributable to shareholders holding ordinary shares of the Bank 173153 27 640
Eamings of loss far the year 173 153 27 640
Weighted average number of ordinary shares cutstanding {in thousands) g2 40
Basic eamings (lose) per ordinary share (in RUB per share) 1 874,36 691,00

Diluted marnings (loss) per ordinary share (in RUB per shara).

December 31, 2012

December 31, 2011

Eamings (Loss) atiributable to shareholders holding ordinary shares of the Bank 173 153 27 540
Interest expense from converllbe debt liabdities (aftar tax)

Eamings (Loss) used for calculation of dilvled samings per share 173 153 27 540
‘Weighted average number of ordinary sharss outstanding (in thousands) o2 40
Plus additional shares resulfing from axpecled convension;

CWeighted average number of ordinary shares for calculation of diluted eamings per an 40
share (in thousands)

Diluted eamings {loss) per ordinary share (n RUB per share) 1 B74.36 691,00
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12 Cash and cash equivalents

December 31, 2012

December 31, 2011

Cash 32 ge7 13 295
Balances on accounts with the Bank of Russia (othaer than mandatory reserves) 11 086 11 184
Balances on corespondent accounts and ovemight deposits with resident banks ar4 50
Balances on comespondent accounts and svemight deposits with non-resident banks BO5 452 608 518
Teoal cash and cash equivalents 649 019 £33 D47

Geographical analysis of cash and cash equivalents, bresk-down of cash and cash equivalents by cumrency and maturity, and also analysis of

interest rates are given & in Note 25,

13  Due from financial Institutions

Due form Ansncial instilutions include |cans provided by the Bank to (deposits placed by the 3ank with) counterparties, Induding the Bank of Russia

Decamber 31, 2012

December 31, 20111

Term inlerbank credits and deposits 8009 137 5206 403
Dther accounts with financial nsfitutions 7510

Tolal due from financial institutions before provision for impairment B 916 647 5 206 403
Provision far mpairment - =
Total due frem financial nstitutions 8916 64T 5 206 403

For information on fair value of due form financial insftutons refer to Note 28,

®

interest rates, maturities and gecgraphical concentration of due form financial instistions are analyzed in Mote 25, Information on related party

ransactions is given in Nate 29,

14 Loans and receivables

December 31, 2012

December 31, 2011

Loens lo lagal entities 3870705 1438722
Total loans and receivables bafore provision for impairment 3870 705 1438722
Provision for impairment (20 0eE) (34 348)
Total loans and receivables 3 850 606 1404 376

Dwring 2012 the Bank did not provide Ioans and receivables to customers at rates below the market rates.
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The break-down of the Bank's koans and receivables by indusiny &5 as lollows

Decamber 31, 2012

December 31, 2011

Amount Amount
{thousands of % [thousands of %
Russian Rubles) Russian Rubles)
Trade and services 1 154 597 29.8% 608 180 43.5%
Industry 790 873 20.4% 321 961 22.4%
Ol and gas and chermecal induskies 868 814 250% 128 784 2,0%
Electric-power industry BE3 060 17.1% 288 197 20,1%
Fisancing and investing 293 261 T.7% 0,0%
Total loans and receivables before provision for
i T 3870 705 100,0% 1438722 100,0%
Prowisicn for impairment {20 099) (34 346)
Total loans and receivables 3 850 606 1 404 376
Loans and receivables individuslly reviewed for impairment as at December 31, 2012 arz as follows
Provision for Impatrment provision
Gross Loens impairment My Laans towards gross loans
Loans and recoivables individuatly reviewed for
imnpairmart
Loans to kegal entities
- pass loans 3005 004 11818} 3003083 0.1%
Total loans Lo legal entities 3870 705 {20 093 3 850 60§ 0,5%
Total loans and receivables individually reviewed
for bnpalriard 3870 705 {20 093] 3 850 605
Loans and receivables individually reviewed for mpalrment as af December 31, 2012 are as follows.
Provision for Impairment provision
Gross Loans impairment Het Loans towards gross loans
Loans and receivables individually reviewed for
impairmenl
Loans to legal entities
- pass loans 1438 722 (34 348) 1404 378 24%
Total loans to legal entities 1438 722 {34 346) 1 404 3TE 4%
Total loans and recelvables individually reviewed
ri
PE) ok 1438 722 (34 346) 1 404 376

Inferast rates, maturities and geographical concentration of loans and receivables to customers are analyzed in Mote 25, Information on related party

tranzactions is given in Nate 29,

Faor infarmatkon on fair value of ioans and receivables o cuslomers refer o MNole 28.
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16 Held<to-maturity financial assets

December 31, 2012

Dacember 31, 2011

Dehl securfies

Government dabl securities 30748 130 297
Debt securities of othar banks 23650 323678
Corporale bonds 152 9497 153 115
Total debt securities before provision for impairment 507 435 607 090
Prowision for impairmant s I
Total held-do-maturity financial essets 507 435 GOT D90

During &t 2012 the Bank did not allecate funds in held-to-malurity financial assets at rates bedow markel rates
Interest ratas, maturities and gecgraphical concentraion of held-te-maturity financial assels are analyzed in Mote 25. Information on related party

transaciions is given m Note 29,
For informatian an fair value of held-lo-maturity financial assets refer to Nele 28,

16 Property and equipment and intangible assets

The value of proparty and aguipment and intangible assets in 2012 is as follows.

Todal property
Furniture and ‘
Bulldings - “‘: Motor vehicles Inmvestments Leass Intangible assets <o other '::;:‘FP*'T-
i ansnts
Carmying amount as at d 2 AGA 33 . - - 269 3170
January 1
Value for sstimate) x
Value (or estimate) &s at i o 042 . = 942 11 292
Jaoary 1 1 308
Additions - 1395 - - - = 100 1495
Value {or estimate) as al ) B ) 5
Decamber 31 - 10437 1308 042 12 787
Cumutative deprecialion =
Cumulative depreciation . R B ;
e st January 1 - [B174) (1275) (E6T3) (8 122)
Depracation change - [1.382) (33} - - - (232) {1 B47)
Cumulative deprecialion : . =
as ot Dacarnber 31 - (¥ 558) {1 308) (a0s) (3 769)
Carmying amount as at - 2881 : : 137 3018

December 31
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The value of propesty and equipment and intangie assats in 2011 s as follows.

Tetald propery
Furniture ard
: Office and equipmeaint
Buildings i Molor vehicles Irvestments Lesse Intamgible assels S ulh“:‘ v Intarphiin
Pl assets
Carrying amouwnt as at R
Janugry 1 4 304 436 - . - 392 5132
Value jor esfimale)
Value (or estimate) as at
January 1 = LEL 1308 5 = - a4 10 550
Additions 585 138 733
Disposals {31} (31)
Revaluation -
Valua {or estimate) as at
o ber 31 - o042 1308 - - - a42 11 2492
Cumulative depreciation
Curnulative cepreciation
a5 al January 1 * (4 174) (872 - - - 412) (5 458
Depreciation charge {2 031) (403} (261) (2 B35)
Disposals 31 kX
Cumulative cepreciation
as at Decamber 31 & (6 174) (12751 - - . {673} {8 122)
Carrying amount as at
31 - 2 BEB 33 - - - 269 3170
17 Other assets
December 31, 2012 December 31, !.fﬂjli
Prepaid expenses, advances, excess payments 21 858 24 815
Provision far impairment (14) {10 7B8)
Total other asseis i1 845 14 027

Intiarest rates, maturities and geographical concentration of other asssts are analyzed in Note 25. Information on related party transactions is given in
Note 29,

18 Due to financial institutions

December 31, 2012  December 31, 2011

Correspondent accounls and overnight deposits of other banks 1320981 B17 754
Tem loans and deposils of other banks 7003 588 3 891 754
Total due to financial institutions B 324 560 4 609 508

Other banks lent funds at fixed interest rates of 0.55-4.22% (2011: 0.40 - 5.31%).

For information on fabr value of due 1o financial institutions refer 1o Mote 28.

Interast rales, maturities and geographical conceniration of dus o financial institutions are analyzed in Mote 25, information on related party
fransactions is ghven in Naote 29,



ICBC (Mosocow)
Financial siatements for the year ended December 31, 2012
{in thousands of Russian Rubles, unless olherwise staled)

19 Customer accounts

December 31, 212

December 31, 2011

Accounts of pivale enfities

Currert and setilement acoounts 1388 512 TG 542
Term depaosils 566 024

Tolal eccounts of prvate enfities. 1 952 535 775 542
fndividval accounts

Currert accounts and demand depaosits 1 .
Total individual aceounts &7 -
Other cuslomer accounts

Oither customer accountis 1 755 -
Tolal cther customer accounis 1 THE -
Tolal customer accounts 1 954 358 775 542

During 2012, the Bank did not bormow from customer accounts al rates above the markel rales.
For information on fair value of customer accounts refer to Note 26,

Interast rates, maturities and gecgraphical concentration of customer accounts are analyzed in Note 25, Information on related pary lransactions is

given in Mote 29

20 Other Habilities

DOihar liabiities nchude nor-financial liabilitias onky,

December 31, 2012

December 31, 2011

Accounts payable 437 386
Currest income fax liahilities 26 100
Taxes payable olher than cument income taxes 35 27
Liazilites under financial guarantze agreemenis 1177 45
Oither lizbilities Ti4 110
Total other liabilities 2 663 915

21 Subordinated loans

Subordinated debt amounting to RUB 1,518,359 thousand (2011; RUB 1,610,763 thousand) has & floating interest rale established on the basis of

3M Libor+, Subordinated loans cannot be repaid aarly,

22 Share capital and share premium

Par value per share, Par value, RUB

MNumber of shares thousands of {thousands of

Russian Rubles Russian Rubles)

Drdinary shares! interests 92 380 25 2 308 500
Total share capital 2nd share premium 92 380 2 308 500

The par value of each ordinary share is RUB 25 thousand per share. Each share represents one vole.

On Movember 25, 2012, the Bank registered increase in its share capital by RUB 1, 309, 500 thousand or by 52 380 valued at RUB 25 thousand

gach.
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23 Retained earnings / accumulated deficit

The Bank keeps books in the currency of the Russian Federation and makes accounting records in compliance with the requirements of bancing
laws of the Russian Federation. Thesa financial statements are prepared on the basis of Ihese accounting records which were adjusted to bring them

in compdiance wih all material aspects of IFRS.

The table below presents Ihe effect of these adjusiments on the equity, particularty on profit or less, in the reporting penod

Tha effect of adjustments on figures in financial slatements as at December 31, 2012 = as follows.

Equity Profit (Loss)
Az percentage of the As percentage of the
value in compliance value in compliance
Absolute value it Ebursiiian Absolute value with Rissian
legislation legeslation
Value in compliance with Russian legislation and 2 354 B4 100,0% 1800 394 1000%
requirements of superdsony authority, the Bank of
Russia
Walue in accardance with IFRS 23554178 100, 0% 1731583 91.0%
The effect of adjustments on figuses in financial statements as at Decamber 31, 2011 is as folows,
Equity Profit [Loss)
As percentage of the As percentage of the
value in compliance value in complianca
Absolute valus i Fiadie Absolute value with Russian
legis|ation legisiation
Walue in compliance wilh Rusaian legislation and 1 016 855 100,0% 28 482 100,0%
requirements of supervisory autharity, the Bank of
Russia
Value in accordance wilh IFRS 1017 038 100.0% 27 640 97.0%

December 31, 2012

December 31, 2011

Equity net of profit ! Profit/ Egquity net of profit / Profit /
(loss) for the (Loss) for the (lass) for the [Loss) for the
reporting period reporting period reporting period reporting period
Value in compliance with Russian legislation and
requirements of supervisory authority, the Bank 2 354 847 190 294 1016 855 28 482
of Russia
Impairment of interest beanng assets 120 0949)
Defered taxes 23 4 363 {49) 142
Depreciation of property and equipment {1647} e
Commission income and sxpense i45) {1132) (50) 5
Operating income and expensea (M7) 1374 283 (1 000)
Ciher - (1 1
Value In accordance with IFRS 2354178 1731 153 1017 038 27 p40

In compliance with legisiation of the Russian Federation, accumulaled retained earmings as per accounting reports of the Bank prepared in
agcordance with Russian Accounting Standards may be distibuled to its shareholders as dividends. As al December 31, 2012, retained eamings of
previous years and unused profil for the reporting period amount lo RUB 233,373 thousand (2011: RUB 44 504 thousand |
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24 Analysis by segment

The Bank does not make desclosures in accordance with IFRS B Operating Segments while its dett and equity securities are not publicly traded in
mgney markats and Bank is not Ssuing such financial instrumants in a public securities market.

25 Risk Management

The Bank manages the folowing financial nsks:
- Credil risk
— Liguidity risk
~ Geographical sk
= Market risk
= Interasi rate nisk
- Currency nsk
- Equity risk
= Dperational risk
— Legal risk

The principal task of financial risk management is to estabiish and to ensure further adherence o riss mits. The assessment af assumes risk also
form the basis for optimal allocation of capital, taking into account risks, formation of pricing for transactions and measurament of pedormance
Cperational and legal sk managemeant shall ensure proper adharence to intermal regulations and procedures 1o minimize aperationa and legal nsks.

The priorly |s to ensure the maximum soundness of assets and capital through minimization of exposure to risks that may resull i unexpacted
losses. Al risks thal may adversely affect the Bank's meeling ils objectives are recognised and measured on a regular basis, This approach applies
o all risks assumed by the Bank in |he course of Hs business (credit risk, liguidity risk, operstional risk, market risk, legal risk, country risk,
reputational risk, strateqy nsk).

The Bank's risks are mainly concentrated in ransactions thal make a majar contribution fo its fnancizl resull, namely: lending to legal entities, trade
fnancing of export-impor! operations, and transactions in the securities and cumency maskels, With high growth rates, the Banks traditionally follows
solidity and farseeing principles. The complete independence in risk assessment and management is basad on the Bank's corporate structure whers
Risk Management Depariment is separated from business departments thal indiate risk-taking and reports directy to Presidant of the Bank,

The: key strategec objective of the Bank is to ensure high sustainabiity and maintain its profit at the kvel allowing development of the Bank and to
wilhdraw rom activitles with high risk,

= Credit risk

The Bank is exposed lo credit sk, which is a risk of a counterparly being unable to meet ils credil obligations in whole when dus. The Bank
manages credit risk by setting exposure limits for indvidual beerowsns and groups of redatad bomawers, Credit risk is monitored on g reqular basis,
with reniew of exposure limils al least once a year, Exposure limits in relation to products and borrowers are approved by the Bank Board. Risks
related with barrowers, including banks and brokers, are also restricted by limits that cover balance sheet and off-balance-shest risks, and dadly
setilement risk limits for defiveries in relation 1o trade instruments such as forward exchange confracts. Acual adhersnce (o the astzblished limits on
accepled risks is menitored on a day-lo-day basis.

The Bank's risk management system includes:
+ diversification of the Bank's loar portfobo and iInvestments:

* prefiminary analysis of a bomower’s creditworhiness (tha Bark validates the borrower's credit history, examine the borrower's reputation, analyses
financing and operafing aciivities, explores whether the borrower (& shle to redesm a debt, analyses security for credit and ather possible factors);

+ creation of provisions for the Bank's credit risk on the basis of the preliminary snalysis;
+ control over loans provided earlier;

» setting the maximum credit risk;

+ =efting lmits fo powers of the Bank's colleclive bodies and officials,

+ delingation of responsibifiies batwean employess, elc.

To manage creds rigk, the Bank has established the Credit Commilies which is respansible for consideration and approval credit imits for borowers.
Meetings of the Cradit Committes are regular,

The Bank closely monitors the concenyation of large credit risk exposure and complisnce with prudential requirements of the Bank of Russia,
analysis and forecast of credil rsks that are presently treated as acceptable

The monitoring system for Ioan and equal indebledness permils earty delection of distresséd asset and immediate measures to mitigate credit risks.

The Bank manitars cradit risk concentration by industies and geographic regions. Gredit risk concentration refated with loans is analyzed in Mote 14,
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— Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk ol mismatch between the matunties of assels and liabilities.
The liquidity Is assessed depandng on:
« thie amount of assets avallable io the Bank and sossible term of disposal of these assets without significant loss for the Bank;

+ puistanding Eabilites, time to their maturity and time-history of the amount of liabiities.

A position is treatad as a risk position when liguid assets of the Bani and expected Snancial resources are not sufficient for the Bank to perlorm its
obiigations within a cerain period of time

Instant (quick) Bquidity is the rato of clams o obligations of the Bank to ba settled throughout the current day. Short-term, medium-tarm and long-
terrn liquedity is the: ratic of claims to obligations of the Bank to be settled within establshed periods of time.

Liquiciity risk is reguated by controfling shorlaga’exoess of monetary resources, allocation and re-alocation of monetary resources by instruments
and their investment terms, liquidity and rate of return, particularly appropriation of funds for kending

The system of liquidity analysie is based on maturity gap between claims (assets) and obigations (liabilities) of the Bank which requires daily
measurement of liquidiy excess (shortage) indicas and coefficients in accordance with instructions of the Bank of Russia,

The Board of the Bank set mits on liquidity excessishoriage by the term of obtaining and regayment of funds that allows efficlent alocation of the
Bank's assels by malurity with low risk. The Bank's Equidity analysis involves adherence to thesa limits, analysis of their absolute vales and
dynamics, and also comparison of these values with the limits set in the Bank.

Liguidity risk management includes the loflowing:
+ forecasling of payment flows by main curencies and determination of required amount of liquid assets;
= monitonng and forecasting of guidity ratios,

= maintenance of diversified rescurce sourses;
+ planning of loan indebtedness repaymen: depending on avalability of funds and maintenance of Bqudity risk at acceplable leval;

+ planning for recovery of required liquidity posiicn under unfavourable or critical croumslances,

+ me-gllocation of assets by matunty [provision of shor-term, medium-term and long-term loans, redefiniticn of open foreign-curency position
transferatle o the next dey). ”
The Bank's liquidity manegement requres the determination of whal amoun of liquid assets |s necessary 1o settie liabdites at their matunty, access
to varous sources of financing, plans of action in case of problems with financing and monitodng whether balance sheet liquidty ratios comply with
requiremants of legislation of the Russan Federation.

The Bank measures Bquidty ratio on a dally basis in compliance with requiremants of the Bank of Russia. During the reporting year, the Bank did not
commit &y non-compliance with the established lguidity reguirements,

The table below shows liabilities as at December 31, 2012 broken down by contractual time to maturity. The presanied amounts reflect contractual
undiscounted cash flows, and also total financial leasing kabilities (bafare future payments), prices specified in currency forward contract for cash
purchase of financial assels, contractual amounts redeemable in exchange sweps the settlement under which & made cn & gross besis. Thess
undiscounted cash flows differ from figures in the balance sheat while the latter is based on discounted cash flows

Az a rule, the difference from the carmying amaount is increased potential costs for borowings in accordance with terms and conditions of contracts in
force al the setliement date.

Whan the amount payable i not fixed, the amount in the table is calculated depending on conditions existing at the end of the reporing period,
Currency payments ars restated with spol foreign exchange rate effective at the end of the reporting period.

The analysiz of financial liabilities by matwity as at December 31, 2012 is given in the table below:

At call and
within one 1 to 3 months 3to 12 After 12 Total
months manths
menth
LIABILITIES
Due to financial mstitutiors 36RT TO7 2922 203 1 769 £83 - B 359993
Customer accounts other than individual accounts 1 82T 235 12 Bd5 15334 - 1955414
Individual accourts 67 - - - &7
Diher Rabilities and provisions 1412 o5 B54 308 2 668
Subordinated loans 1125 1 320 Z 445 1 524 560 1 520450

Total potential future payments on financial

5 597 545 2 936 554
Habilities 7 1788 626 1524 868 11847 593
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The analysis of financial liabilities by maturity zs al Decembar 31, 2011 |5 ghoen in the table below:

At call and

o 12 After 12
within ane 1 to 3 months st g Total
mionth
LIABILITIES
D to financial instiutions 1 900 598 1 726 604 BEZ 306 " 4 6049 508
Customer accounts 775 542 - - - TS 542
Other liabilities and provisions 495 - 40 5 541
Subardinated loang 543 121 - 1 609 BOS 1610 769
Total gotentisl future paymmunts i finmiclel 2677479 1726725 962 346 1609810 6996360
Habilities
— Geographical risk
Assels and lablities are (normally) classifed by the country of residence of counterparty
The geographical analyses of assstz and liabilties of the Bank as at Decembar 31, 2012 is given below:
Southeast Other
Russia DECD Asia G Total
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 43 527 480 176 145 316 649013
Mandatory cash balances with the Bank of Russia 375 260 - - 375260
Due from financial nstitutions 3495 378 - 5177013 244 255 BB B4T7
Loans and recenvables 3534 556 - - 316 050 3 850 60
Hedd-lo-maturity inancial assets 507 435 - - 507 435
Deferred tax asset 4 456 - - 4 456
Property and equipment and intangble assets ams - . 3ma
Dfiner assats 21 618 s 227 - 21845
Total assets 7 985 249 460 176 5 322 556 560 305 14 328 286
LIABILITIES
Dwe to financial instifutions 1387 516 25 083 6811018 952 B 324 560
Customer accounts other than individual accounts 1854 291 - - - 1954 291
Individual accewnts B7 - - - &7
Chher kabilities and provisions 2 668 - - 2660
Subordinated loans - - 1 519 358 - 1510360
Total liabilities 3 344 543 25 083 8 430 377 852 11 200 955
MNeat balance 4 640 TG 435 093 {_3- 107 B21) 553 353 2527 30
The geographical analysis of assets and liabiltses of the Bank as al Decamiar 31, 2011 is given balow:
Southeast Other
Russia OECD Asia i Total
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalenis 24 529 470 774 137 744 633 047
Mandatory cash belances with the Bank of Russia 173 206 - - - 173 206
Due from financial institutions 1 644 630 . 3302 826 255 947 5 208 403
Loans and recesvables 942 775 - - 421 601 1 404 376
Held-to-maturity financial assets 453 975 153 1156 - 507 090
Dafemed tax assel B3 - - @0
Property and equipment and intangible assets 3170 - - 3T
Dther assats 14 025 a 2 = 14 02T
Total assels 3 296 403 623 BES 1 440 572 68D 548 B 041 412
TIRBILITIES
Due to financial institutions 4 B0 508 - - - 4 505 508
Customer accounts 715 542 - - - 775 542
Other lianilities and provisions 915 - - - i3
Subordinated loans - - 1 610 760 - 1810 769
Total liabilities 5 385 965 - 1610 769 - 6 906 T34
Met balance {2 DED 562) 623 BBY 1 B29 803 GB0 548 1 044 6TE
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= Market risk

The Bank is exposed to market nsk thal is the risk of financial losses or decling in the value of assets ansing from adverss movemenis in markst
prices (forekon exchangs rates, pricas of preciows metals, interest ralas}). The Bank sets kmits on the level of accepled risk and controls adherence to
these limits on a daily basis. Sul this approach cannol entirely prevent from losses which ane cver the limits in cases of more considerable charges
in the market,

PralHous L pUcK NOOPAAAEMABTCR HA:

= interast rate rsk

= equily rsk

= CABTERsCy risk

The Bank manages markel risk in accondance with the marke! risk management policy. The main aim of the markel risk management is o aplimize
the riskireward ratio, minimize losses in case of unfavourable events and to reduce the difference belween he financial performance and its
expecied performance

The Bank assesses market risk bath by components and comprahensively and determines market risk concentration and diversificaticn result of
diversification

= Interest rate risk

Tha Bank take: on exposure lo the effects of Mucluations in market interes] rates on its financial postion and cash flows. Interest marging may
increase as a resull of such changes but may reduce or creale losses in the event that unexpected movements anse,

The Bank is exposed o interest rale nsk prmarily as a resull of lending at fixed nterest rases, in amowrts and for terms which differ from those for
borrowings al fixed interest rates.

To manage Interes! rake risk, the Bank mainly applies the foliowing methods:
= maturity-matching of assets and liabiliies,
- gap analysis.

The analysis of the Bank's rsk resulting from fuctustons in interesl rates as al December 31, 2012 is given below, The iable displays assels and
Eabilites which are exposed o intersst rate risk and classified to different time categories by contractual dates of inlerest rate revision

AR Exlf st 1103 Ito12 After 12 'mdofinite lerm
within one e ths ath | Nao intarest Total
month " mor moiyae rate risk
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 605 866 E - - 43153 649019
Mandatory cash balances with the Bank of Russia - - - - 375 260 375 260
Due from financal instiutions 3 301921 5068 164 111 565 434 007 - B 916 647
Loans and receivables - - 1185 468 2655138 . 3 850 606
Held-to-maturity financial assets - 457 685 49 750 - - 507 435
Deferred tax asset - - - - 4 456 4 455
Property and eguipment and intangible assets - - - - 3018 3018
Oiher assels - - - - 21 BaS 21845
Total assets 3 WE T8T 5 525 849 1 EEB 783 3 090 135 44T TI2 14 328 285
Accrued total assets 3 907 TET 9433 636 10 790 419 13 680 554 14 328 286
LIABILITIES -
Due to finandal insttulions AG59074 2 905 576 17559 919 - - 8 324 569
Customer accounts other than irdividual accounts 1826 387 12 718 15 186 - - 1 854 201
Individual accounts &7 = = - - B7
Other Eabillies and provisions - 15 854 ang 1 452 2 663
Subordinated loans 911 832 BOT 527 . = - - 1 518 353
Tetal liabilities 5 497 360 3 525 Bi6 1775 959 308 1492 11 800955
Accrued total llabilities G497 360 100231896 11793 155 11 799483 11 BOO 955
Marginal gap {2 5A9 573) 2 000 M3 1419 176} 3 OEG 27 446 240
Accrued cumulative gap 0,60 0,94 0,91 1,18 1,41

Tnterest rate sensiivity (24 817) 16 667 [1572) [B722)
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The analysis of the Bank's risk resulling from fluctuations in interest rates as al Decarnber 31, 2011 is gliven balow

At call and Imdefinite term
within one Y3 i1k Afar 12 e interast Total
ot maonths maonths maonths raderrbali

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalants 6B0B 568 = - 24 478 633 47
Mandatory cash balances with the Bank of Russia - - - 173 206 173 206
Due from financial instiutions 1 267 205 569 891 269202 B57 105 - 5 206 403
Loans and recelvables 452 034 291 620 BE6D 722 . 1404 376
Held-to-matusity inancial assets . - a0 459 507 631 - BOT 080
Dielerred tax asset - - - 5] 83
Property and equipment and intangible assets - - - - 3170 3170
Other assels 56 - 44 - 13 927 14 027
Tetal assels 2 327 851 Ba1 611 3 452 237 1164 T36 214 875 B 041 412
Accruoed total assels 2 327 853 3209 564 6 5661 801 T 826 53T B 041 412
LIABILITIES
D to financial insttutions 1 900 588 1 726 604 B2 306 - - 4 609 508
Cuslomer actounts 775 542 = - - - 775 542
Oiher liabilities and provisions 496 - 40 5] T4 215
Subordinated loans 066 726 644 043 - - - 1 810 TED
Telal llabilitles 3 643 362 2 370 647 G982 346 5 IT4 6 996 734
Accrued total liakilitias 3 643 362 6 014 009 B 996 355 6 996 350 G 996 734
Marginal gap {7 315 400) (1 483 036} 2 460 891 1164 731 214 501
Accrued cumulative gap [N 0.53 0,35 1,12 1,15
Interest rate sensilivity (12 606) [12 409} g 252 {15 753}

Sensilivity 1o fluctuations in interest rates is the effect of a paralled shift In all yield curves of 100 basis points to tha amount of net interest income for

a year

— Currency risk

The Bank is exposed to curency risk that is the nsk of lnsses arising from adwerse changes in exchange rates on open foreign currency positions. *
The Bank sels limits on the level of accepted risk by currency and comprehensively both for the end of each day and throughout the day and controls

adherenca to thase limits on a daily bass.

The tables below provides general analysis of the Bank's curmency risk as al the reporing date, December 31, 2012

RUB usD EUR CHY Total

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 25027 507 524 2618 113 B850 49018
Mandatory cash balances with the Bank of Russia 375 260 - - - 375 260
D from financial institutions 205 77T 4 452 419 - 1 548 451 8916647
Loans and recelvables 36T A81 2633750 275 757 553 218 3 850 606
Hedd-to-maturity financial assets 507 435 - = - 507 435
Deferred lax asset 4 456 - 4 456
Property and equipment and intangiole assets amsa - - - ama
Other assels 21822 23 - - 21845
Total assets 4 240 676 7593 T16 278 375 2215519 14 3128 286
LIABILITIES
Due to financial institutions 634 94T 5243 600 276 969 2165053 B 324 560
Customer accounts other than indnadual accounts

- curment accounts, demeand deposits 510 132 797183 140 B0 &12 1 388 267

- tarm deposits 550 838 15 186 - - 566 024
Incividual accounts

- current accounts, demand deposits BT - - &7
Imzrest payabde - - - .
Other liatilities and provisions B41 1171 B57 - 2668
Subordinated loans - 1 519 358 - 1519359
Total liabilities 1 626 B25 7 576 499 277 766 2 245 865 11 80O 955
Met balance 2 543 851 17 217 609 {34 346} 2 8273
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The tables below provides general analysis of the Bank's curmency risk as al the reporting date, December 31, 2011:

RUB uso EUR CNY Total
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 13 150 480 226 | 388 128 273 633 047
Mandgetory cash balances with the Bank of Russia 173 206 - - - 173 208
Dwua from finencial instiutions 267 539 3151 237 - 1 187 627 5 206 403
Loans and receivabies - 1 065 615 - 338 761 1 404 378
Held-to-maturity financial assets G607 020 - . - 607 040
Deferrad 1ax asset 43 - + - 93
Property and equipment and intangible assets 3170 - - - 3170
Diher assels 13 880 44 - 3 14 027
Total IEEIE 1678 228 4707 122 1398 1 654 664 8041 412
LIABILITIES
Due lo financial instiutons 186 240 3086 948 534 1335785 4 608 508
Customer accounts 411 938 286 612 TG 982 TIG 542
Oither liabilities and provisions 850 48 7 - 35
Subordinated loans = 1610 769 = = 1 510 769
Total labilities 595 D38 4 B84 377 541 1412778 6 996 T34
MNet belance 1079 180 {277 255) BST 241 BEB 1 044 678
— Equity risk

Dwring the reporting period, the Bank did not concuct transactions with assets that are subject to equity rick.

The Bank assumes equily risk arsing from changes in falr value of securities held by the Bank and thelr quoted market prices. To minimize egquity
risk, the Bank monitors its liquidity, sats limits on transactions with securties and controls adherence to these limits.

- Operational risk

Operational gk is the risk of losses resulting from inadequacy of internal processes and procedures. for banking operations and other transactions to
the type and range of the Bark's business and (or) applicable legslation, breaches of them by the Bank's employess and (or) other persons [due to
thedr incompetence, unintended or intended act or omission), disproportienate (insufficient) funclionslity {characternistics) of information, technologies!
and other systems used by tha Bank and (or) their functional fallures, and also from extemal events.

The Bank's operational risk management invehves several stages: identification, assessment, moritoring, control andlor minimization of cperational
gk,

To minimize operational rsks, the Bank regulary reviews informalion security, improvas internal normative documents regulating procedures of
transactions, opimizes informationa flows and internal documant workflow.

The Bark Indentifies operational risk on a regular basis, To thal effect, the Bank maintains an analytic database of operating losses incumed broken
down by activities of the Bank to record types and amounts of losses, and also orcumslances under which these losses have been occumed. The
Bank alzo maintaing an external database of opesational risks that presents realized facts of operatonal risk in the external emvironmen: of the Bank

- Legal risk

Legal risk ks the risk that the Bank cay incer losses due to its incompliance with laws and regulations, and concleded contracts, legal emors
committed in operating activity, imperfact |legal syslem (inconsistent legisiation of the Russian Fedaralion, lack of legal norms o regulats some
Issues which ardse in the course of business of the Bank), violalion by counterparties of laws and regulations and terms and conditions of concludes
contracts.

The Bank maintaing continued ongoing mondonng of changes in Russian and inlermational legislation and timely amends internal instnections and
regulations and thus reduces this risk.

26 Capital management

The Bank's capital managemen! ks aimed at the following: (1) adherence 1o capital requirements set by the Bank of Russia and (i} ensuring the
Bank's ahility to operate as a going concern. The Bank also moniors the capilal ratio in accordance with Basel framework (o maintsin | of 8 percant
of greates.

Dwring periods ended Decamber 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, the Bank complhied with capital requirements set by the Bank of Russia.

The Bank's adequecy ratios calculated n accordance with Capital Accord (adopled in July 1883, revised in Movember 2005) as established by
International Convergence of Capital Measuremeant and Capital Standards, ususlly called Based |, and November 2005 update incorporating the
calculation of market risks are as follows

December 31, 2012  Decembser 31, 2011

Capital adequacy {Tier 1) 17.9% 131%
Total capital {Tier 1 and Tier 2) 26,8% 19.7%
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During 2012 and 2011, the Bank complied with all exdemal capital requirements.

27 Contingent liabilities

Legal proceedings

From fime to time and in the normal course of business, claims against the Bank are reczived. Based on own assessment and recommendalions of
internal and extemal advisors, the management believes that the Bank will not incur any material losses resulting from legal proceedings on such
clalms and, for this reason, has not created any relaled provisions.

Tax legislation

The Russian tax legislation primarily considers tax effects of transactions according on the assumplion of its legal form and accounting treatment
under the Russian accounting rulas and regulations. Accordingly, the Bank can stryciure its transections so as to take advantage of opportunities of
Russian 1ax legislation 1o recuce the overall effective tax rate, The Bank's management is confident thal this restruzturing of taxable income and
deductible expenses 5 unlikely to result in adeifional tax kabiliies. For this reasen, no peovision for a potential tax liabilty arsing from these
frangacthons has been created by the Bank.

Operating lease commitments

Wherea tha Bank is lhe lessee, the minimum lease paymenis under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

Within one year 32 207 32374
In the: second 1o fifth years inclusive 51624 BE 504
After five years - -
Total operaling lease commitments 83 831 11B 968

Opersting leases Include premises lease agreements, i, the principal place of location of the Bank. The rent under these agreements |5 a renl per
souare meter multiplied by the area of the premises leased

Credit related commitments

The primary purpose of these instruments is to ensure that funds are available lo & customer as roguined, Guaraniees, |.e. imevocable undertaking by
the Bank to make a payment in the event that a customer fails to perform its obligations to third parties, are exposed (o he same nsk as loans,
Documentary credils, |, wrilten undaraking by the Bank on behall of & customer to pay a specified amourd subject o meeting of the stipulated
conditions, are secured by goods delivery or cash deposils and therefore exposed to kower risk than direct loans. Credil commilments al a specific
rale duning a fixed period of time are accountad for as derivafive financial instruments unless their maturity sxceeds standard lending temms
Outstanding credit related comrritments of the Bank are as fofows:

The Bank recognizes provisions for credit related commitments if losses on such commitments are highly probable.

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

Guarantees issued 3T3TIE 566 984
Prowision for impairment - =
Total credit related commitments ITATIE 566 984

In additicn, as at Decamber 31, 2012, mandatory cash balances with the Bank of Russia amownt to RUB 375,260 thousand (2011 RUB 173,205
thausand | and are nol intended for financing daily operations of the Bank.

28  Fair value of financial instrumeants

Fair valua of an assel is the amourt for which a financial instrurment could be exchanged between knowledgeable, willing partias in an arm’s length
transaction, The best evidence of fair value is given by quoted price in the market for the financial nstrumant,

The Bank determined the estimated fair value of finencial instrument on the basis of available markel data (if avattable) and proper valuation
techniques. Professsonal jedgments are however requirad to interpret market data (o detesrrine the estimated fair value. Notwithstanding the Russian
Federation is rated investment grade, it continues 1o display some characleristic of an emerging econamy and economic emvironment continues o
fimit the lavel of activity in financial markess, Market quotaions may be outdated or reflect low sale cost and, in view of this, mispresent fair value of
fimancial insfruments. Managament has used all available market data in measunng the fair value of financial instrumants.

Financial instruments at fair value

Trading securities and other securilies changes in fair value of which are recognised in the income: statement, available-for-sale financial assels are
reporied al fair valee. The fair value is based on the guoted marke! prices. Cash and cash equivalents are caried &l amortised cost which
approximates their curent fair value,

Due from financial institutions

In the Bank's cpinion, the fair value of due from financial institutions. did not significantly differ from thesr camying amount. |t is explained by the

existent practice when inlerast rate Is restated in order to reflect current market conditions. mterest for most balances s based on rates similar (o
rmarket ones.
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Loans and recelvables

The faer value of floatng rate nsirements s normally their camying amount In case of significant changes n the market environment, the Bank can
review intarest rates on fixed rate loans to customers and deposids with other banks. As a congequence, interest rates on lpans made prior to the
reporting date do mol signficantly differ fram affective interest rates in the loan marke! for new mstruments with similar credit isks and remaining
maturities. If the Bank estimales that rates on loans made in earker periods significantly differ from effective interest rates for similar nstruments at
the reporting date, the eslimaled fair value of such loans shall be measured. The measurement is based on expected cash flows discounted at
affective intarast rales in the loan market for new instruments with similar credit fsks and remaindng maturities. The discount rales wsed depand on
the currency, maturity of the mstrument and credit risk of the counterparty

Held-to-maturity financial assets

The fair value of hedd-to-maturity financial assets is based on markel gualations
The Bank measures the fair value of other financial assets, including trade and business recehablas hal is equal to the carrying amount taking nta
account that the indebtedness is shart-term.

Liabilities at amortised cost

The fair value of liabilities at amortised cost is based on quoted markel prices, if available. The estimated fair value of fixed rate instruments wilh a
stabed maturity, for which guoted market prices are not available, is based on expected cash flows discounted at interest rates for new instruments
with simalar credit risks and remaining maturities. The fair value of ligkilities repayable on demand or after a rotice period ("demandable liabdifies”) is
estimated as the amount payable on demand, discounted from the first date that the amount could be required to be paid

The far value of financial instnaments IS as follows:

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011
Carrying amount Fair value Carrying amount Fair valua
Financial assets
Financial asseds al amorlised cost
Cash and cash equivalerts E4B 019 B49 012 633 047 633 47
Mandataory cash balances with the Bank of Rusga 75 260 375 260 173 206 173 206
Due from financial mstitutions 8516 647 8916 647 5206 403 5 206 403
Loans and receivables 3 850 606 3850 608 1404 378 1404 378
Held-to-maturty financial assets 07 435 507 435 607 090 607 ﬂéﬂ
Other assets 21845 21 845 14 027 14 027
Total financial assets 14 320 812 14 320 812 B 038 149 B 038 149
Financial Nabilities
Financial Vabilibies at amorised cos!
Due io financial institutions B 324 5E9 B 324 568 4 509 508 4 6049 5048
Customer accounts 1954 358 1854 358 775 baz 775 b4l
Oiher ligbilites and provisions 2 680 2 564 015 315
Subcrdinated loans 1519358 1519 358 1610 769 1 610 TE3

Total labilities 11 B00 955 11 800 955 € 906 734 6896 T34




ICBE (Mosoow)
Financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2012
(b thousands of Russian Rubles, unless otherwise stated)

29 Related party transactions

For the purposes of these financial statements, parties are considered 1o be related if one party has the ability to control the odher party or 1o exercise
significam infsence on the other party In making financial and operating decsbons as stated in 145 24 Related Party Disclosures. In considering each
possible ralated party relationship, attention is directed 1o the substance of the relationship, not mesety the kegal form,

Dwring the reporting period, the Bank actively worked with its pareml company, Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited. a shareholder of
the Bank, and also with its branches and subsidiaries in the market of interbank lending, frade financing and foreign currency purchase and sale
ransactions (including CNY/RLUE)

Az at December 31, 2012, the Bank's relaled partes inchude:

Principal shareholders

Mame

Activity

Relations

Until the date in the
current penod

Imdustrial and Coemmercal Bank of China Limied (PRC)

Financing and Invasting

shareholcer, 100%

Kay managers of te Bank

Mame

Actvily

Fumnction

Until the diate in the

current persod
Zheng Weidong President manapement
Lang Weijie Vice President manapamend
or G, Tillin Viee President manapemeni
g pem
DOdoa M. Kulakova Chief Accountant manacemesnl unlil May 13, 2013
Other related parties of the Bank
Marme Activity Funetion Uni e m." the
current periad
branch sndior sulssidiary of the
ICEC BELIMNG MUNICIPAL BRANCH Financing and imvesting parent vy
. branch andor sulbgidiary of he
ICBC-SHENIHEN Firi iy diid it parent compary
branch andior suibsidiary Gf e
ICAC-ASIA HONGKONG Financng and svesting Py —— -
) i branch sndion of the
ICBC-NEW YORK Financng and imvesling parent m
- branch andior subsidiary of the
ICBC Singapore Branch Fimaneng and mveating plt iy
branch andior subsidiary of the
ICBC-LONDON Financng and mvesting R
i ’ branch andior subsidiany of the
Fi and investi
ICBC HERLONGJIANG BRANCH nEncng it parent company
lbranch andfor subsidiary of e
ICBC SUZHOU BRANCH Financing and imvesting 1 company
. . ’ branch and'or subsidiary of the
ICBC GUANGDONG PROVINCIAL BRAMCH Financing and investing Ry
y . branch and'or subsidiary of the
ICBC HOMNGKONG BR Financing and imvesting d Dompany
bramch andior subgidiary of fhe
ICBC FRAMKFURT Fimancng and imesling Eompdiniy
. bramch andior subsidiany of e
ICEC SEQUL Financing and mvesting i v pany
- i bramch andior subsidiary of the
ICBC Perh BR Finamcing and imvesting oAy

Related party transactions were conducted at market rales, unbess olherwise stated. Ending balances, items of income or expenses associated with

refated party transactions for the year are as follows.
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Principal shareholders

Items of assets and kahilties pssociated with related parbes transactions that are princpal shareholders for 2012 and 2011 are as follows.

Decamber 31, 2012

December 31, 2011

Characteristics of Characteristics of
aszets and liabilities R A assets and liabilities Carrving amount
{rate, ownership Tying (rale, ownership myng
interest) inbarest)
ASSETS
balance af balanca of
Cash anc cash aquivalents corfaspondent 23 839 correspandernt 101413
accounts accounts
Other assels other setitements 27 -
Total agsats 24 066 101 413
LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities al fair value through profit or loss -
Inans issued and loans ssued and
Dwie te financial institudions deposits paced by 2 4E89 103 deposits placed by 1 226 736
non-resident banks non-resident banks
Subordinated loans 1510 359 1810 763
Total Eakilities 41008 452 2 B37 505

Hems of mcome and expenses essociated with related parfies fransactions that are princpal shareholders for 2012 and 2011 are as follows.

2012 2011
Inerest income: 6228 -
Interest expensa 27 41 1. )
Income less expanse brom forelgn currency Iransactons 13 428} (2 B2E)

Key managers of the Bank

The amount of remuneration to key managers for 2012 and 2011 5 as follows:

December 31, 2012

December 31, 2011

Salary and other shor-term remunerations

13 Ba7

12 288
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Othar related partles of the Bank
Hems of assets and kabililies sssociated with related parties fransactions that are othar related parties for 2012 and 2011 are as follows.

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011
Characlenistics of Characterstics of
assets and Eabiliies . assels and liabilities
{rate, ownership GG moD: {rate, ownership Garying amaunt
interest) Interest)
ASSETS
balance of balance of
Cash and cash equivalents correspondent 580 638 comespondent 507 085
accounts BoLounts
loans issued o and i
Dise from Snancial institutions deposits placed with gpgtyn Thardenonhs i 23 894
1 nor-resident banks
nan-resident banks
Total assels 1 053 554 530 989
LIABILITIES
foans wssuad and lnans issued and
Due to financial instilstions deposits placed by 4 458 047 deposits placed by 941 a7
non-resident banks noreresident banks
Taotal habilities 4 458 047 841 987
jtems of income and experses associated with related parties fransactions thal are oiber relsted parties for 2012 and 2011 are as follows.
2012 201
Inferest income 5528 5633
Interest expense 84 273 11 950
Income less expense from foraign currency ransactions 547 {11 501]
Commission ncome 19 3
COMITESSInn Sxpense = a0

Contingent lizbiliies associated with related parties ransaclions that are other related parties for 2012 and 2011 are as follows.

December 31, 2012  December 31, 2011
Guaraniess issued £3 000
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30 Subsequenievenis

These financial mmamwmmimmmﬂ all mmaﬂmmmndﬁmaﬁm;mlhampuﬁQdmmm by the Bank after the
reparting date

A-saummmm-mmmm.m-mmpmﬂondlmmm;mwum

Olga N. Kulakova acting as Chief Accountant in the reporting year is nemove from tha Board sinca May 13, 2013 in connection with her voluntary
resignation.

whmmwmmw resolution dated June 26, 2013
[ ] President

[ | Depuly Chief Accountant




